
AGENDA 
COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING 

MONDAY, MARCH 23, 2020  
1:00 P.M. 

___________________________________________________________ 

****GOVERNOR’S EXECUTIVE ORDER N-29-20**** 
**RE CORONAVIRUS COVID-19** 

The Community Advisory Committee meeting will be conducted pursuant to the provisions 
of the Governor’s Executive Order which suspends certain requirements of the Ralph M. 
Brown Act. Community Advisory Committee Members will be teleconferencing into the 

Community Advisory Committee Meeting. 

Members of the public who wish to listen to the Community Advisory Committee 
Meeting may do so via the following teleconference call-in number and access code: 

• Telephone number: 1 (872) 240-3212
• Access Code: 238-673-965

PLEASE NOTE: The Sonoma Clean Power Business Office is closed, and this meeting will 
be conducted entirely by teleconference. Due to the Governor's Executive Order 

N-29-20, all questions and public comment need to be submitted in written format.

We ask that should you want to submit public comment that you do so by email before the 
item is discussed by the Committee. Please state the agenda item number that you are 

commenting on and limit written comments to three hundred (300) words. Comments can 
be sent to meetings@sonomacleanpower.org.  

Written comments received prior to the meeting and/or the public comment period for the 
agenda item you wish to comment on will be read into the record. 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT LISTED ON THE AGENDA

(Comments are restricted to matters within the Committee jurisdiction.  The Committee
will hear public comments at this time for up to thirty minutes.  Please be brief and limit
comments to three minutes.)

III. COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE CONSENT CALENDAR

1. Approve February 20, 2020 Draft Community Advisory Committee Meeting
Minutes (Action) - pg. 5

2. Recommend that the Board Adopt a New Commercial Electric Vehicle Rate
Structure & Rates for the Remainder of the 2019/2020 Fiscal Year (Action) - pg. 9

1 of 154

https://www.gov.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2020/03/3.17.20-N-29-20-EO.pdf


3. Recommend that the Board Approve and Delegate Authority to the CEO to
Execute Second Amendment to Contract with TLCD Architecture (Action) - pg. 17

IV. COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE REGULAR CALENDAR

4.  Receive Internal Operations and Monthly Financial Report and Provide
Feedback as Appropriate (Discussion) - pg. 25

5. Receive Regulatory Update and Provide Feedback as Appropriate
(Discussion) - pg. 73

6. Recommend that the Board Adopt a Resolution to Award the Construction
Contract for the Sonoma Clean Power Headquarters Project to the Low
Bidder, Midstate Construction Corporation, in the Amount of $9,405,000;
Waive Immaterial Bidding Irregularities; Reject Bid Protest from C. Overaa &
Co.; Find the Project to be Exempt from CEQA; Authorize the CEO to Execute
a Construction Contract and Change Orders; and Make Certain Findings
Relating to these Actions (Action) - pg. 81

7. Review and Provide Input on the Annual Budget, Customer Rate Setting
Strategy for Fiscal Year 2020-2021, Establishment of Customer Bill
Stabilization Fund, and Proposed Revision of Financial Policy B2 Regarding
Contributions to Reserves (Discussion) - pg. 121

V. COMMITTEE MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS 

VI. ADJOURN

DISABLED ACCOMMODATION: If you have a disability which requires an accommodation, 
or an alternative format, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (707) 890-8491, as soon as 
possible to ensure arrangements for accommodation. 

2 of 154



COMMONLY USED ACRONYMS AND TERMS 

 

AER Advanced Energy Rebuild (A program that helps homeowners affected by the October 
2017 firestorms rebuild energy efficient, sustainable homes). 

CAC  Community Advisory Committee 

CAISO  California Independent Systems Operator  

CAM  Cost Allocation Mechanism 

CCA  Community Choice Aggregation 

CEC  California Energy Commission 

CleanStart SCP’s default service 

CPUC  California Public Utility Commission  

DER  Distributed Energy Resource  

ERRA  Energy Resource Recovery Account 

EverGreen SCP’s 100% renewable, 100% local energy service 

Geothermal A locally-available, low-carbon baseload renewable resource 

GHG  Greenhouse gas 

GRC  General Rate Case  

IOU  Investor Owned Utility (e.g., PG&E) 

IRP  Integrated Resource Plan 

JPA  Joint Powers Authority 

LSE  Load Serving Entity 

MW  Megawatt (Power = how fast energy is being used at one moment) 

MWh  Megawatt-hour (Energy = how much energy is used over time) 

NEM Net Energy Metering   

NetGreen SCP’s net energy metering program 

PCIA Power Charge Indifference Adjustment (This fee is intended to ensure that customers 
who switch to SCP pay for certain costs related to energy commitments made by PG&E 
prior to their switch.) 

ProFIT SCP’s “Feed in Tariff” program for larger local renewable energy producers 

PSPS Public Safety Power Shutoff - a term used when it may be necessary for PG&E to turn  
off electricity for public safety when gusty winds and dry conditions, combined with a 
heightened fire risk, are forecasted 

PV Photovoltaics for making electric energy from sunlight 

RA Resource Adequacy – a required form of capacity for compliance 

REC Renewable Energy Credit – process used to track renewable energy for compliance in 
California. 

SCP Sonoma Clean Power 

TOU Time of Use, used to refer to rates that differ by time of day and by season 

3 of 154



 

 

Page intentionally left blank for double-sided printing 

4 of 154



 

 

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES  
COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING 

FEBRUARY 20, 2020 
1:00 P.M. 

___________________________________________________________ 
50 Santa Rosa Avenue, Fifth Floor, Santa Rosa, California 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER  

 Chair Dowd called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m. 

Committee Members present: Chair Dowd and Members Brady, Chaban, 
Fenichel, Nicholls, Mattinson, Morris, Sizemore, Quinlan, and Wells  

Staff present: Geof Syphers, Chief Executive Officer; Michael Koszalka, Chief 
Operating Officer; and Stephanie Reynolds, Director of Internal Operations  

Clerk of the Board, Beau Anderson, administered the Oath of Office to new 
member Shivawn Brady; Member Brady then detailed her personal and 
professional background.  

II. PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT LISTED ON THE AGENDA  

 None  

III. COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE CONSENT CALENDAR  

1. Approve January 23, 2020 Community Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes  

Motion to Approve the January 23, 2020 Community Advisory Committee 
Meeting Minutes by CM Wells  

Second: CM Nicholls  

Motion passed: 10-0-0 

IV. COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE REGULAR CALENDAR  

 2. Receive Operations Report and Provide Input as Appropriate  

Director of Internal Operations Stephanie Reynolds introduced SCP’s newest 
team member, Program Manager Carolyn Glanton. Director Reynolds 
detailed a recent tree planting that SCP staff participated in with EverGreen 
customers at the Jenner Headlands Preserve. She then advised the 
Committee that Patrick Slayter from the City of Sebastopol was selected as 
Chair of the Board of Directors for 2020, while Melanie Bagby from the City of 
Cloverdale will serve as Vice Chair. CEO Syphers stated that upcoming 
Committee meetings will focus on drafting and developing budget 
recommendations for the upcoming fiscal year, and that the SCP 

5 of 154



 
 

Headquarters Construction Contract will come before the Committee at their 
next meeting.  

 Public comment: None 

3. Receive Legislative and Regulatory Updates and Provide Input as Appropriate  

Director of Regulatory Affairs Neal Reardon advised the Committee that the 
Power Charge Indifference Adjustment (PCIA) fee will increase by no later 
than May 1st. CEO Syphers and Director Reardon then described the 
challenges with ascertaining the validity of the PCIA fee, given that this 
information is not easily accessible to SCP and only available through data 
requests. Director Reardon then detailed a Request for Offers (“RFO”) by 
PG&E for substation generation resources during Public Safety Power Shutoff 
(PSPS) events, and the likelihood that most of the responding bids will be gas-
powered resources given the requirements of the RFO. He then reminded the 
Committee that SCP raised issues with the RFO, namely that PG&E lacks 
jurisdiction within SCP’s service territory to create generation resources on 
behalf of SCP or other municipal utility providers, and that this proposal 
should not be a substitute for grid safety and resiliency. Director Reardon 
detailed how SCP staff recently met with PG&E to discuss the RFO and to 
address outstanding questions around generation resources, community 
needs & preferences, along with grid safety and reliability.  

CEO Syphers gave a legislative update, which along with the printed materials 
provided for the meeting, included a proposed bill to accelerate the adoption 
of renewable energy in California; bills to protect CCAs rights to procure 
preferred resources; a proposed CalCCA bill for Resource Adequacy 
functions; and Senator Skinner’s bill for open access for distributed resources.   

Public comment: Deborah Tavares spoke on purchasing nuclear energy from 
PG&E and liability issues associated with PG&E generation facilities.  

4. Recommend that the Board Approve Budget for Self-Generation Incentive 
Program (SGIP) Assistance and Delegate Authority to the CEO to Negotiate, 
Execute, and Amend a Professional Services Agreement for SGIP Assistance 
Processing  

Director of Programs Cordel Stillman provided a brief overview of the SGIP 
program, which is a rebate program administered by PG&E using CPUC 
funds, that incentivizes purchase of battery storage and other technologies. 
He detailed the onerous application process and how this agreement will help 
SCP customers navigate the application process and secure SGIP funding in a 
timelier manner. Programs Manager Carolyn Glanton then gave an overview 
of the program, including the revolving fund structure and program 
requirements.  

 CM Quinlan asked about any liabilities associated with advancing customers 
the SGIP incentive while their applications are pending; Director Stillman 
responded that customers are required to sign a participation form which 

6 of 154



 
 

assigns the SGIP revenues to SCP, and if their applications is not approved, 
they are obligated to repay SCP. 

 CM Wells asked about the terms of the agreement; Director Stillman clarified 
that the agreement will run through December 31, 2020, for an amount not to 
exceed $100,000.  

 Public comment: Deborah Tavares spoke about battery storage and her 
reservations about microgrids.  

 Motion to Recommend that the Board Approve the Budget for Self-
Generation Incentive Program (SGIP) Assistance and Delegate Authority to the 
CEO to Negotiate, Execute, and Amend a Professional Services Agreement 
for SGIP Assistance Processing by CM Nicholls  

 Second: CM Mattinson  

 Motion passed: 10-0-0 

5. Discussion of SCP and PG&E’s Potential Partnership to Accelerate Solutions to  
Public Safety Power Shutoffs  

 CEO Syphers introduced the item by detailing a recent Request for Offers 
(“RFO”) that PG&E issued to obtain bids to construct electric generation 
resources at 20 substations located in high fire risk areas, many of which are in 
SCP’s service territory. CEO Syphers highlighted that the RFO is structured in 
a way that natural gas powered resources are likely to be used during PSPS 
events. He then detailed potential approaches that might potentially be more 
responsive to community needs while supporting renewable energy & climate 
goals, and requested Committee feedback on potential options for clean 
power PSPS solutions.   

Chair Dowd detailed the challenges that PSPS events bring, especially to the 
County’s regional waste treatment facility. CEO Syphers described a recent 
vote by the City of Ft. Bragg to pursue clean power solutions for PSPS events. 
CM Sizemore noted that PG&E’s Potter Valley Hydroelectric Facility is for sale 
and could be used as a generation resource. CM Mattinson observed that any 
gas-generation resources in the City of Sebastopol would likely be opposed 
by community members; he also noted that the proposed plan does little to 
address grid reliability and safety and appears to be a workaround to actually 
harden the grid. CM Morris noted her support for the City of Fort Bragg’s 
approach, which emphasizes maintaining critical facilities with solar coupled 
with battery storage.  

Public comment: 

Deborah Tavares spoke about PG&E grid resiliency efforts and other matters.  

Paul Brophy asked about the PG&E RFO and the potential for operating these 
resources outside of PSPS events, hardening transmission lines from the 

7 of 154



 
 

Geyser’s geothermal facility, and prioritizing wildfire abatement efforts to 
mitigate greenhouse gas emissions  

V. COMMITTEE MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS  

None 

VI. ADJOURN 

Chair Dowd adjourned the meeting at 3:02 p.m.  

8 of 154



 

 

 

  

Staff Report – Item 02 

 
To: Sonoma Clean Power Authority Community Advisory Committee 

From: Erica Torgerson, Director of Customer Service 
Rebecca Simonson, Power Services Manager 

Issue: Recommend that the Board Adopt a New Commercial Electric Vehicle 
Rate Structure and Rates for the Remainder of the 2019/2020 Fiscal 
Year   

Date: March 23, 2020 
 

Requested Action: 
 
Recommend the Board adopt a new Commercial Electric Vehicle (CEV) rate class and 
corresponding rates effective May 1, 2020.  The rates will be set at the same level as 
PG&E including PCIA and Franchise Fee per SCP’s March 1, 2020 rate change.   
 
Background:   

On November 5, 2018, PG&E filed Application 18-11-003 seeking approval of its new 
commercial rates for load serving electric vehicle service equipment (EVSE) and the 
creation of a new class of customers choosing to take service on the rate. Decision 
19-10-055 (Decision) approved PG&E’s Application on October 24, 2019.  

Prior to this Decision commercial and multi-family accounts with dedicated EV 
charging had to be on a commercial (business) rate (e.g. A-6, B-10).  The proposed 
CEV rate class eliminates demand charges, instead using a monthly subscription 
pricing model to enable: 

 More affordable charging 

 Simpler pricing structures 

 Improved certainty and budgeting 

9 of 154



 

 

On December 24, 2019 the California Public Utilities Commission (“CPUC”) approved 
a plan by PG&E to implement CEV rate in two phases. Phase 1 is scheduled to be 
available to customers May 1, 2020 and includes the fundamental components of a 
rate including rate enrollment via PG&E call centers and standard billing. Phase 2 will 
be deployed October 1, 2020 and includes a wider array of features and functionality 
such as online rate enrollment, solar (Net Energy Metering) billing, implementation of 
overage fee grace periods, subscription overage fees, as well as overage fee 
notifications by text/email. 

All customers on the CEV rate will have an extended grace period from the Phase 1 
deployment on May 1, 2020 through the end of the 2020 calendar year. In addition, 
an online tool will be made available for current and prospective customers which 
provides cost estimates based on kWh and kW usage and other EV related factors. 

Context for New Commercial EV Rate Filling: 

Regulatory and policy alignment: 

 Electric charging costs can be a barrier for adoption of EVs and growth of 
charging infrastructure – especially for fleets and fast charging. 

 Rate designs that simplify and lower cost barriers for EV charging can support 
State policy initiatives to accelerate adoption of clean vehicles and reduce 
climate and air pollutants.  

 PG&E’s CEV rate proposal aligns with CPUC Rate Design Principles and The 
Senate Bill 350 Guidance Ruling. 

  Few utilities outside of California have designed rates for commercial EV 
charging – particularly for fast charging or EV fleets. 

Designing a new commercial EV rate class:   

 To create rates for commercial EV charging, PG&E created a new rate class 
specific to these customers. This allows PG&E to design rates around EV load 
shapes and better fit rates to cost of service for EV charging. 

 Existing commercial & industrial rates are generally designed around building 
and industrial facility load shapes, which don’t align well with EV charging. 

 Creating a new commercial EV rate class allows PG&E to transparently track 
and understand costs to serve these new customer types and aligns with 
PG&E’s Modern Rate Architecture framework. 

The proposed EV rates will benefit all customers: 

10 of 154



 

 

PG&E does not anticipate that the creation of CEV rates will create any cost-shift 
among customers because the majority of the CEV load will be new load from shifting 
away from fossil fuels.  Revenues from CEV rates are additional to previously 
approved forecasts, and any costs collected above marginal costs put downward 
pressure on all PG&E customers’ rates.  PG&E plans to track costs and revenues from 
this new customer class through the 2023 GRC, and if needed, propose any changes 
in that rate case, factoring the market, customer and policy conditions at that time. 

Rate Structure: 

Under the existing rate structure, high-power public EV chargers that are on business 
electric rates can incur demand charges, a cost included on commercial customer 
bills that are calculated based on the peak electricity usage of a customer during a 
billing period. Planning around and managing these demand charges pose unique 
and significant challenges to EV charging projects. 

The new CEV rate structure replaces demand charges with new subscription pricing, 
which allows customers to choose the amount of power they need for their charging 
stations, similar to choosing a data plan for a cell-phone bill. This subscription charge 
is much lower than current demand charges, and allows customers to have simpler, 
more consistent monthly costs. 

PG&E designed two rates specifically for fleets, fast charging, workplaces, and 
multifamily dwellings creating a new rate class for Commercial EV (CEV) charging. 
Assuming approval, SCP will match this new rate class.  

 

Commercial Electric Vehicle (CEV) Rate Class 

BEV1 – Low Use  BEV2 – High Use 

 Charging installments up to 100 
kW (e.g. smaller workplaces and 
multi-family) 

  Charging installments over 100 kW 
(e.g. fleets, fast charging, and larger 
sites) 

 Secondary voltage service only   Options for secondary and primary 
voltage service. 

 
  

11 of 154



 

 

How it Works: 
 
     

1) Customers choose 
subscription level, based on 
charging needs: 

 BEV1: 10kw blocks 

 BEV2: 50kW blocks 

 

 

 Subscription 
Charge: 

BEV2-High Use 
$95.56 / 50 kW connected 
charging (Illustrative) 

    
BEV1-Low Use 
$12.41 / 10 kW connected 
charging (Illustrative) 
 

Customers that want to manage charging loads 
can opt for a lower subscription level 

2) Subscription charge remains 
consistent month to-month 

 3 Month Overage Fee 
Grace Period (new 
enrollment and change 
in connected load) 

 Subscription Auto 
Adjustment on 4th 
Billing Period 
 

 Overage 
Fee: 

If site charging power exceeds 
subscription, several Customer 
Communications are triggered (text 
or email). 
 

  An Overage Fee will take effect after the 
subscribed kW limit is reached. Each kW over 
the subscription will be charged at double the 
rate of 1kW of Subscription. 

3) Energy usage is billed 
based on time-of-day 
pricing: 

 Peak, Off Peak, SOP 

 No Seasonality 

 Energy 
Charge: 

 
(BEV2-High Use ~ Illustrative) 

   
Charging is cheapest mid-day, when there are 
higher levels of renewable energy generation. 

Customers should avoid charging during peak 
hours from 4-10 p.m., when possible 
 

Values above represent BEV2-High Use, secondary voltage rates. All rate values in 
this presentation are bundled, preliminary, and should be considered directional 
only.  

12 of 154



 

 

Customers are required to have MV90 Meter or SmartMeter AND have to be 
individually metered from existing buildings and facilities to be eligible for the rate. 

 
 
PG&E Implementation Timeline: 
Below is PG&E’s timeline for the delivery of BEV1 and BEV2.  Due to the IT updates 
needed to fully implement the new rate class, PG&E will implement the rate class in 
two phases.   
 
Phase 1 will launch on May 1, 2020 with basic features described below, while the 
fully functional Phase 2 is scheduled for October 1, 2020.  Once fully operational, 
customers will be able to enroll in BEV1 or BEV2 online, complete rate comparisons, 
and sign up for text or email alerts.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13 of 154



 

 

Super Off Peak: 9:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m.
Off Peak: 2:00 p.m. - 4:00 p.m. &

10:00 p.m. - 9:00 a.m.
Peak: 4:00 p.m. - 10:00 p.m.

Same time-of-use periods year around.
Summer Period: June 1 - September 30
Winter Period: October 1 - May 31

Rate Structure: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Bill Savings for Sample Site Types*: 
 
 

 
 
 

14 of 154



 

 

 
 
* Rates provided are bundled, preliminary, and should be considered illustrative only. 
 
Rates: 
 
PG&E has stated that it intends to file the draft CEV rate tariff sheets in late March with 
illustrative prices.  It is anticipated by staff (based on past experience) the final PG&E 
prices (retail rates) will not be filed until April 30th, effective May 1st.   
 
 
 
 
Staff Recommendation for SCP in Response to PG&E Rate Changes:  
 
Staff requests the Committee recommend to the Board of Directors the adoption of 
the new BEV1 and BEV2 rate structures and corresponding rates for SCP customers. 
Rates will be set to even with PG&E including PCIA and Franchise Fee.    
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
It is anticipated by staff that the new rates will not have much of a financial impact for 
SCP for this fiscal year as they do not become fully operational until October 1, 2020.  
Additionally, most of CEV load will be new load as people shift from fossil fuels to 
electricity for transportation. 

15 of 154



 

 

Page intentionally left blank for double-sided printing 

16 of 154



 

 

 

  

Staff Report – Item 03 

 
To: Sonoma Clean Power Authority Community Advisory Committee 

From: Chad Asay, Programs Manager 

Issue: Recommend that the Board Approve and Delegate Authority to the 
CEO to Execute Second Amendment to Contract with TLCD 
Architecture 

Date: March 23, 2020 
 

Requested Committee Action: 

Staff requests that the Community Advisory Committee (“CAC”) recommend that the 
SCP Board of Directors (“Board”) Delegate Authority to the Chief Executive Officer 
(“CEO”) to execute a second amendment to the contract with TLCD Architecture to 
add $69,000 to the not-to-exceed amount over the term due to unforeseen 
engineering and design costs at the Advanced Energy Center (“AEC”).   

Background:   

SCP’s initial contract with TLCD Architecture (“TLCD”) was approved by the Board on 
December 6, 2018 to design a complete remodel of the leased, vacant space into a 
new marketplace and demonstration space.  The initial term of the contract was 
through October 31, 2019.   

A first amendment to the TLCD contract to expand the scope to cover additional, 
unforeseen engineering and design work extended the term to March 1, 2020 and 
increased the not-to-exceed amount to $633,442. 

Discussion: 

This is the second amendment to the TLCD contract to expand the scope to cover 
additional, unforeseen engineering and design work. The second amendment would 

17 of 154



 

 

extend the term to December 31, 2020 and increase the not-to-exceed amount under 
the contract by $69,300 to increase the total not-to-exceed amount under the 
contract from $633,442 to $702,742. 

TLCD and their engineers spent additional time searching for and preparing building 
drawings due to a lack of existing documentation for work in the right of way such as; 
water & sewer lines, fire sprinklers service and street tree relocation.  Additionally, 
TLCD needed to extend our Construction Administration contract duration from 12 
weeks of construction to an estimated 33 weeks. While the contractor and team are 
working to improve the schedule with estimated completion targeted for July 1st 
2020, the additional time and scope is required to complete the administration for 
the job.   

Fiscal Impact: 

In FY 19/20 SCP budgeted $4.2M dedicated to CEC grant administration, labor and 
tenant improvements. Additionally, there are $509K in grant funds dedicated to the 
AEC tenant improvements. SCP will dedicate the full $509,000 in grant funds to the 
AEC construction project and then makeup for the difference with SCP funds.  Even 
with the additional funds allocated to this contract, no budget adjustment will be 
needed for this amendment. 

Attachments:  

 Second Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement for the Sonoma 
Clean Power Authority with TLCD Architecture for the Sonoma Clean Power 
Authority Energy Marketplace 

Related Items “On File” with the Clerk of the Board: 

 First Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement for the Sonoma 
Clean Power Authority with TLCD Architecture for the Sonoma Clean Power 
Authority Energy Marketplace 

 

 

 

18 of 154



SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE AMENDED AND RESTATED PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR THE SONOMA CLEAN POWER AUTHORITY 

WITH TLCD ARCHITECTURE FOR THE SONOMA CLEAN POWER 
AUTHORITY ENERGY MARKETPLACE 

This Second Amendment (“Second Amendment”) to the Amended and 
Restated Professional Services Agreement for the Sonoma Clean Power 
Authority with TLCD Architecture for the Sonoma Clean Power Authority 
Energy Marketplace (the “Agreement”) is entered into between the Sonoma 
Clean Power Authority (“SCPA”), a California Joint Powers Authority, and 
TLCD Architecture a California Corporation (“Consultant”) as of April 2, 2020 
(“Second Amendment Effective Date”).  SCPA and Consultant are, at times 
individually referred to herein as “Party” and collectively as “Parties”. 

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into the Agreement dated December 6th, 
2018 (“Original Agreement”) for Consultant to provide engineering, 
architectural, design and other related support services for SCP’s renovation 
of a commercial building located at 741 4th Street, Santa Rosa CA. The 
building will serve as SCP’s Energy Marketplace and include a showcase of 
zero-carbon technologies, and energy efficiency measures; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties subsequently updated and revised the Original 
Agreement, entering into a First Amendment to the Agreement (the “First 
Amendment”) dated August 1, 2019, in order to extend the Term of the 
Agreement to March 1, 2020 and increase the total not-to-exceed amount of 
the Agreement from $507,779 to $633,442 and to expand the Services 
provided by Consultant which included (a) address an American with 
Disabilities Act (“ADA”) ramp, (b) and perform work related to a fire sprinkler 
system, (c) incorporate Solatubes; and;  

WHEREAS, SCPA now desires to increase the total not-to-exceed 
amount under the Agreement by $69,300 to increase the aggregate not-to-
exceed amount under the Agreement from $633,442 to $702,742; and 

WHEREAS, SCPA now desires to expand and revise the Services 
provided by Consultant to include the design of construction documents and 
encroachment permits for work in the right of way (water & sewer lines, fire 
sprinklers service and street tree relocation), and extend our Construction 
Administration contract duration from 12 weeks of construction to an 
estimated 33 weeks; and 

WHEREAS, SCPA now desires to extend the term of the Agreement 
from March 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with section 30.5 all changes to the 
Agreement must be in writing and signed by all Parties. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. The “Appendices Included” list on the cover page of the Agreement is
hereby amended as follows: 

19 of 154



 

 
  Page 2 of 5 

Second Amendment  
SCPA| TLCD Architecture  
 

 
 “APPENDICES INCLUDED: 
 
  Appendix A (Scope of Services) 
   Including: 

Appendix A1 (Approved Additional Services) 
   

Appendix B (Compensation Schedule) 
   Including:  
   Appendix B1 (Fixed Fees for Base Services)   
   Appendix B2 (Hourly Rates) 
   
  Appendix C (Insurance) 

Appendix D (Electric Program Investment Charge (EPIC) 
Standard Grant Terms and Conditions)”  

 
2. The definition of “Agreement” in Section 1 (Definitions) of the 
Agreement is hereby amended as follows: 
 
  “Agreement  This Agreement together with all 
attachments and 

appendices and other documents incorporated 
herein by reference, including, but not limited 
to, Appendices "A," (including Appendix “A1”) 
"B," (including Appendices "Bl" and "B2") and 
"C," attached hereto.” 

 
3. Appendix A1 (Approved Additional Services) attached to the Second 
Amendment is hereby added to the Agreement following Appendix A. 
 
4. Section 2 of the Agreement is hereby superseded and replaced as 
follows:  

 
“2. Term of Agreement 

 
 Unless terminated earlier in accordance with sections 13 and 14 of 
this  Agreement, the term of this Agreement (“Term”) shall begin on 
the  Effective Date and shall end when all work comprising the 
Services is  deemed performed under this Agreement or no later than 
December 31,  2020.” 
 

 
5.  Section 1.1 in Appendix B of the Agreement is hereby superseded and 
replaced as follows:  
 

“1.1  Excluding Additional Services only, the amount of compensation 
to be paid to Consultant for all services under this Agreement 
shall not exceed seven hundred and two thousand, and seven 

20 of 154



 

 
  Page 3 of 5 

Second Amendment  
SCPA| TLCD Architecture  
 

hundred and forty-two dollars ($702,742) referred to hereafter as 
the Not-To- Exceed Amount (“NTE”). Total compensation due 
Consultant shall be the actual amount invoiced based upon the 
Consultant’s hourly billing, which may be less than the NTE 
amount. Reimbursable Expenses are included in the NTE. The NTE 
also includes within its scope the scope of all subconsultants and 
their reimbursables, and shall constitute full compensation for the 
Services.”  

6.  Appendix B-1 Fixed Fees for Base Services attached to the Agreement 
is hereby superseded and replaced by Appendix B-1 - Amended Fixed Fees 
for Base Services attached to this Second Amendment. 
 
7. Except as set forth above, all terms and conditions of the Agreement 
remain in full force and effect. 
 

By signing below, the signatories warrant that each has authority to 
execute this Second Amendment on behalf of their respective Parties, and 
that this Agreement is effective as of the Second Amendment Effective Date.  
 

SONOMA CLEAN POWER 
AUTHORITY 

 

 TLCD Architecture  

 
 
 

BY: 

 
 

 

BY:  

 

 Geof Syphers 
Chief Executive Officer 
 

 

TITLE: 

 
 
 

 
DATE: 

    

   DATE:  
    

21 of 154



 

Appendix A-1  
APPROVED ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

 
Consultant agrees to provide and SCPA approves Consultant’s performance 
of the following work as Additional Services:  

 
A. Brelje & Race Consulting Engineers to provide construction documents 

and encroachment permits for work in the right of way such as; water & 
sewer lines, fire sprinklers service and street tree relocation (not-to-
exceed amount of $3,300);  

 
B. TLCD Architecture to coordinate with Building Owner’s architect and 

contractors and the project engineers for water & sewer lines, fire 
sprinklers service and street tree relocation (not-to-exceed amount of 
$6,000);  

 
C. TLCD Architecture to extend our Construction Administration contract 

duration from 12 weeks of construction to an estimated 33 weeks. While 
the contractor and team are working to improve the schedule with 
estimated completion targeted for July 1st, 2020, the additional time 
and scope is required to complete the administration for the job. (not-
to-exceed amount of $60,000);  

 
 

TOTAL NOT-TO-EXCEED AMOUNT FOR ADDITIONAL SERVICES SET FORTH 
IN APPENDIX A-1: $69,300. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

22 of 154



 

 
  Page 5 of 5 

Second Amendment  
SCPA| TLCD Architecture  
 

 

APPENDIX B-1 AMENDED FIXED FEES FOR BASE SERVICES 
 

  

SCP Advanced Energy Center Fee Worksheet   
November 20,2018   

Revised July 12, 2019 to include Amendment #1   
Revised March 17, 2020 to include Amendment #2   

                          

        
Programming  

& S/D   
DD   

CD/  
Permitting/  

Bid   
CA  

Services   
Commissioning   Allowance   Total   

Contract  
Amend  

#1   
Total   

Contract  
Amend  

#2   
New  
Total   

TLCD   Architectural   $53,500   $23,700   $65,500   $47,600   $0   $0   $190,300   $69,973   $260,273   $66,000   $326,273   
TLCD   Furniture   $13,100   $21,000   $15,750   $2,700   $0   $0   $52,550   $0   $52,550       $52,550   
B&R   Civil   $3,500   $0   $0   $0   $0   $0   $3,500   $17,440   $20,940   $3,300   $24,240   
ZFA   Structural   $2,000   $0   $16,000   $5,000   $0   $0   $23,000   $0   $23,000       $23,000   
G&B   Mechanical   $10,000   $13,000   $25,000   $17,000   $0   $0   $65,000   $0   $65,000       $65,000   
G&B   Electrical   $9,000   $10,000   $22,000   $13,000   $0   $0   $54,000   $0   $54,000       $54,000   
G&B   Lighting   $3,000   $3,000   $6,000   $2,000   $0   $0   $14,000   $0   $14,000       $14,000   
Gilleran   Energy   $2,200   $2,200   $1,029   $0   not incld   $0   $5,429   $0   $5,429       $5,429   
Cromb   Cost   $3,900   $5,200   $5,900   $0   $0   $0   $15,000   $3,000   $18,000       $18,000   
TEECOM   

Telecom &  
A/V   $0   $21,000   $31,000   $23,000   $0   $0   $75,000   $25,000   $100,000       $100,000   

Scott  
AG   Signage   $0   $0   $0   $0   $0   $10,000   $10,000   $10,250   $20,250       $20,250   
                                                    
TOTALS       $100,200   $99,100   $188,179   $110,300   $0   $10,000   $507,779   $125,663   $633,442   $69,300   $702,742   

  

23 of 154



 

 

Page intentionally left blank for double-sided printing 

24 of 154



Staff Report – Item 04 

To: Sonoma Clean Power Authority Community Advisory Committee 

From: Stephanie Reynolds, Director of Operations 
Mike Koszalka, COO 

Issue: Receive Internal Operations Report and Provide Feedback as 
Appropriate 

Date: March 23, 2020 

SCP Internal Response to COVID-19 

In response to the developments related to the COVID-19 pandemic, SCP has been 
preparing contingency plans for daily operations and for staff safety. These plans 
include, but are not limited to: 

• All SCP staff has been provided equipment needed to work from home during
the shelter-in-place period and are in communications with each other on a
daily basis.

• Following Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-25-30 (attached), public
meetings and workshops will be held via teleconference or webinar (for
workshops) to avoid gatherings that may lead to the spread of the virus.

• Prior to the office closure, SCP headquarters was cleaned daily by internal staff
with special attention to work surfaces, doors, chairs and other contact areas.
This will continue until no longer recommended by the CDC.

• Handwashing instructions and reminders have been placed in the wash areas,
tissues and hand sanitizers have been placed throughout the office.

• The financial impact on SCP is not yet well-determined. Staff are actively
studying changes needed for our load forecast and sales projections and will
update the Committee and Board as we learn more over the coming months.

25 of 154



 

 

 

  2/1/2020 

  

EverGreen  
Participation 

% 

Participation 
% 

Opt 
Out % 

Participation % 
Change 

CLOVERDALE INC 0.6% 83.8% 16.2% 0.0% 
COTATI INC 3.4% 90.8% 9.2% 0.0% 
FORT BRAGG INC 0.9% 82.8% 17.2% 0.0% 
PETALUMA INC 0.8% 89.1% 10.9% 0.0% 
POINT ARENA INC 1.0% 85.3% 14.7% 0.0% 
ROHNERT PARK INC 0.3% 88.5% 11.5% 0.1% 
SANTA ROSA INC 0.7% 88.9% 11.1% 0.0% 
SEBASTOPOL INC 4.0% 91.1% 8.9% 0.0% 
SONOMA INC 1.5% 86.9% 13.1% 0.0% 
UNINC 
MENDOCINO CO 0.9% 78.8% 21.2% 0.0% 
UNINC SONOMA 
CO 1.1% 87.1% 12.9% 0.0% 
WILLITS INC 0.6% 80.8% 19.2% 0.0% 
WINDSOR INC 0.5% 87.9% 12.1% 0.0% 

Grand Total 0.9% 86.9% 13.1% 0.0% 

Mendocino 0.9% 79.4% 20.6% 0.0% 
Sonoma   0.9% 88.2% 11.8% 0.0% 

 

BUSINESS ENERGY WORKSHOP HELD IN MENDOCINO COUNTY 

On Thursday, 2/27/20, SCP staff and consultants held a Business Energy Workshop at 
the North Coast Brewing Company in Fort Bragg.  This event was held to continue 
SCP’s presence in Mendocino County and bring SCP & our Programs (including Lead 
Locally and information about the AEC) into the forefront for the County. Information 
was also presented by The Energy Alliance Association (TEAA), who facilitates a 
“Direct Install” program designed to address the needs of small to medium 
commercial customers for performance based Energy Efficiency installations. TEAA’s 
programmatic work is a part of the funding from the Public Purpose Program (PPP), 
which is required by the CPUC, administered on behalf of PG&E, but funded directly 
by all California rate payers. 

 

KINCADE FIRE (2019) UPDATE  

In December 2019, SCP staff received approval from CEO Syphers to work with PG&E 
to write-off accounts receivable balances for victims of the Kincade Fire. The decision 

26 of 154



 

 

follows the bill forgiveness approved by the Board for the 2017 Wine Country Fires. 
This process required significant work with our billing team at Calpine Energy 
Solutions and PG&E to ensure balances and write-off amounts were accurate. The 
final bill forgiveness analysis was completed in February. Here are the final numbers: 
195 accounts received bill forgiveness as a result of the fire for a total of $5,389.48. 
 

PROGRAMS UPDATES: 

 
SCP staff is developing a “Solar + Battery Storage” class to tentatively be held mid-
April. The class will focus on residential SCP customers who want to incorporate solar 
and battery storage into new and existing homes. We are currently working with 
potential speakers and outlining an agenda. SCP customers who are interested may 
sign up for email updates at www.sonomacleanpower.org/sign-up-for-email-updates 
and choose “Solar Plus Storage Class”.  Many of the upcoming events scheduled by 
SCP may be redesigned as webinars or rescheduled in consideration of current 
events.  

 

LAKE COUNTY FEASABILITY STUDY  

On May 20, 2019, SCP received a request from the County of Lake to consider 
offering service to the County and its incorporated cities. The SCP Board asked staff 
to begin studying this option at the June 6, 2019 board meeting.  Staff then began 
requesting data from PG&E and started the feasibility analysis in November 2019, 
after receiving all of Lake County’s electric usage history.  The results of the analysis 
were shared with Lake County staff in February for feedback and brought to the SCP 
Board at their March 5, 2020 meeting. Although the Board concurred with staff’s 
recommendation against extending an offer for service to Lake County at this time, 
the Board gave staff direction, which included: an annual update to the Board on 
feasibility of extending service, advocacy and support for Lake County at the 
legislative level, and considering Lake County as a site for future renewable energy 
projects.  

The Feasibility Study is included as an attachment to this item.  

MONTHLY COMPILED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

The year-to-date growth in net position is slightly above projections due primarily to a 
combination of higher than anticipated electricity sales and lower than expected 
costs of energy. Year-to-date electricity sales reached $114,237,000. 

27 of 154

http://www.sonomacleanpower.org/sign-up-for-email-updates


 

 

SCP maintains a balanced portfolio by procuring electricity from multiple sources. 
Net position reached a positive $110,827,000, which indicates healthy growth as SCP 
continues to make progress towards its reserve goals. Of this net position, 
approximately $71,260,000 is set aside for reserves (Operating Reserve: 
$58,450,000; Program Reserve: $10,689,000; and Collateral Reserve: $2,120,000). 

Overall, other operating expenses continued near or slightly below planned levels for 
the year.  

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

The accompanying budgetary comparison includes the 2019/20 budget amendment 
approved by the Board of Directors in February 2020.  

The budget is formatted to make comparisons for both the annual and the year-to-
date perspective. The first column, 2019/20 YTD Budget, allocates the Board 
approved annual budget at expected levels throughout the year with consideration 
for the timing of additional customers, usage volumes, staffing needs etc. This 
column represents our best estimates and this granular approach was not part of the 
Board approved budget. 

Revenue from electricity sales to customers is slightly less than the year-to-date 
budget by approximately 2%. 

The cost of electricity is approximately equal to the budget-to-date. Variation in this 
account is typically due to fluctuating market cost of energy on open position 
purchases.  

Major operating categories of Data Management fees and PG&E Service fees are 
based on the customer account totals and are closely aligned to budget.  

In addition to the items mentioned above, SCP continues its trend of remaining near 
or under budget for most of its operating expenses. 

 

UPCOMING MEETINGS: 

BOD – Thursday, April 2, 2020 at 8:45 A.M. 

CAC – Monday, April 20, 2020 at 1:00 P.M. 

BOD – Thursday, May 7, 2020 at 8:45 A.M. 

 

28 of 154



 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

January 2020 Financial Reports 

Executive Order N-25-20 

Lake County Service Feasibility Study, dated 2/25/20 

29 of 154



1 

ACCOUNTANTS’ COMPILATION REPORT 

Management  
Sonoma Clean Power Authority 

Management is responsible for the accompanying financial statements of Sonoma Clean Power 
Authority (a California Joint Powers Authority) which comprise the statement of net position as of 
January 31, 2020, and the related statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, and the 
statement of cash flows for the period then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America.  We have performed a compilation engagement in accordance 
with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and 
Review Services Committee of the AICPA. We did not audit or review the accompanying statements 
nor were we required to perform any procedures to verify the accuracy or completeness of the 
information provided by management. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion, conclusion, nor 
provide any assurance on these financial statements.  

Management has elected to omit substantially all of the note disclosures required by accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America in these interim financial statements. 
Sonoma Clean Power Authority’s annual audited financial statements include the note disclosures 
omitted from these interim statements. If the omitted disclosures were included in these financial 
statements, they might influence the user’s conclusions about the Authority’s financial position, results 
of operations, and cash flows.  Accordingly, these financial statements are not designed for those who 
are not informed about such matters.  

We are not independent with respect to the Authority because we performed certain accounting services 
that impaired our independence. 

Maher Accountancy 
San Rafael, CA 
March 2, 2020 

1101 Fi fth Avenue, Suite 200  San Rafael, CA  94901    415 459 1249  mahercpa.com 

30 of 154



Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 70,034,092$      
Accounts receivable, net of allowance 16,826,332        
Other receivables 2,129,627          
Accrued revenue 8,128,045          
Prepaid expenses 1,284,416          
Deposits and other current assets 757,079             
Investments 20,108,713        

Total current assets 119,268,304      
Noncurrent assets

Land and construction-in-progress 5,587,774          
Capital assets, net of depreciation 164,127             
Deposits and other noncurrent assets 5,459,242          

Total noncurrent assets 11,211,143        
Total assets 130,479,447      

Current liabilities
Accounts payable 1,474,654          
Accrued cost of electricity 14,913,083        
Advanced from grantors 347,000             
Other accrued liabilities 2,469,650          
User taxes and energy surcharges due to other governments 447,916             

Total current liabilities 19,652,303        

Investment in capital assets 5,751,901          
Unrestricted 105,075,243      

Total net position 110,827,144$    

NET POSITION

SONOMA CLEAN POWER AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
As of January 31, 2020

ASSETS

LIABILITIES

See accountants' compilation report. 2
31 of 154



OPERATING REVENUES
    Electricity sales, net 113,908,936$      
    Evergreen electricity premium 327,813               
    Grant revenue 2,416,814            
      Total operating revenues 116,653,563        

OPERATING EXPENSES
    Cost of electricity 86,906,023          
    Contract services 8,164,117            
    Staff compensation 2,380,132            
    General and administration 609,166               
    Program rebates and incentives 438,396               
    Depreciation 37,096                 
      Total operating expenses 98,534,930          
        Operating income 18,118,633          

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
    Interest income 789,244               
    Other nonoperating revenue 710                      
      Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 789,954               

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 18,908,587          
    Net position at beginning of period 91,918,557          
    Net position at end of period 110,827,144$      

July 1, 2019 through January 31, 2020
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

SONOMA CLEAN POWER AUTHORITY

See accountants' compilation report. 3
32 of 154



CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers 118,490,948$     
Receipts from grantors 1,021,283           
Payments to electricity suppliers (85,350,666)       
Payments for other goods and services (7,260,725)         
Payments for staff compensation (2,483,003)         
Tax and surcharge payments to other governments (1,600,932)         
Payments for program rebates and incentives (506,621)            

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 22,310,284         

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments to acquire capital assets (791,453)            

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest income received 650,585              
Proceeds from certificates of deposit matured 10,274,237         
Purchase of certificates of deposit (20,000,000)       

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities (9,075,178)         

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (including County Investment Pool) 12,443,653         
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 57,590,439         
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 70,034,092$       

July 1, 2019 through January 31, 2020
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

SONOMA CLEAN POWER AUTHORITY

See accountants' compilation report. 4
33 of 154



Operating income 18,118,633$       
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net

cash provided (used) by operating activities
Depreciation expense 37,096
Revenue adjusted for allowance for uncollectible accounts 874,505
(Increase) decrease in:

Accounts receivable (451,928)
Other receivables (1,029,736)
Accrued revenue 2,281,106
Prepaid expenses 332,720
Deposits (425,000)

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable (326,746)
Accrued cost of electricity 196,282
Advance from grantors (97,625)
Accrued liabilities 2,865,993
User taxes due to other governments (50,416)
Supplier security deposits (14,600)

  Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 22,310,284$       

SONOMA CLEAN POWER AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
July 1, 2019 through January 31, 2020

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET 
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

See accountants' compilation report. 5
34 of 154



1 

ACCOUNTANTS’ COMPILATION REPORT 

Board of Directors 
Sonoma Clean Power Authority 

Management is responsible for the accompanying special purpose statement of Sonoma Clean Power 
Authority (a California Joint Powers Authority) which comprise the budgetary comparison schedule for 
the period ended January 31, 2020, and for determining that the budgetary basis of accounting is an 
acceptable financial reporting framework. We have performed a compilation engagement in accordance 
with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and 
Review Services Committee of the AICPA. We did not audit or review the accompanying statement nor 
were we required to perform any procedures to verify the accuracy or completeness of the information 
provided by management. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any 
assurance on this special purpose budgetary comparison statement.  

The special purpose statement is prepared in accordance with the budgetary basis of accounting, which 
is a basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. This report is intended for the information of the Board of Directors of Sonoma Clean Power 
Authority. 

Management has elected to omit substantially all of the note disclosures required by accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America in these interim financial statements. 
Sonoma Clean Power Authority’s annual audited financial statements include the note disclosures 
omitted from these interim statements. If the omitted disclosures were included in these financial 
statements, they might influence the user’s conclusions about the Authority’s financial position, results 
of operations, and cash flows.  Accordingly, these financial statements are not designed for those who 
are not informed about such matters.  

We are not independent with respect to the Authority because we performed certain accounting services 
that impaired our independence. 

Maher Accountancy 
San Rafael, CA 
March 2, 2020 

1101 Fi fth Avenue, Suite 200  San Rafael, CA  94901    415 459 1249  mahercpa.com 

35 of 154



 2
01

9/
20

 Y
T

D
 

A
m

en
de

d 
B

ud
ge

t 
 2

01
9/

20
 Y

T
D

 
A

ct
ua

l 

20
19

/2
0 

Y
T

D
 

A
m

en
de

d 
B

ud
ge

t 
V

ar
ia

nc
e 

(U
nd

er
) O

ve
r

20
19

/2
0 

Y
T

D
 

A
ct

ua
l/ 

A
m

en
de

d 
B

ud
ge

t %
 2

01
9/

20
 

A
m

en
de

d 
B

ud
ge

t 
 2

01
9/

20
 A

m
en

de
d 

B
ud

ge
t R

em
ai

ni
ng

 
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 A
N

D
 O

T
H

E
R

 S
O

U
R

C
E

S:
   

 E
le

ct
ric

ity
 (n

et
 o

f a
llo

w
an

ce
) *

11
6,

81
9,

40
6

$ 
   

  
11

3,
90

9,
64

6
$ 

   
  

(2
,9

09
,7

60
)

$ 
   

   
98

%
19

6,
60

0,
00

0
$ 

   
  

82
,6

90
,3

54
$ 

   
   

   
 

   
 E

ve
rg

re
en

 P
re

m
iu

m
 (n

et
 o

f a
llo

w
an

ce
)

29
0,

56
3

   
   

   
   

   
32

7,
81

3
   

   
   

   
   

37
,2

50
   

   
   

   
   

11
3%

48
9,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
16

1,
18

7
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 C
EC

 G
ra

nt
 

2,
77

6,
66

7
   

   
   

   
2,

31
9,

18
9

   
   

   
   

(4
57

,4
78

)
   

   
   

   
84

%
4,

76
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

2,
44

0,
81

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
 B

A
A

Q
M

D
 g

ra
nt

 
58

,3
33

   
   

   
   

   
  

97
,6

25
   

   
   

   
   

  
39

,2
92

   
   

   
   

   
0%

10
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
2,

37
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

   
 In

te
re

st
 in

co
m

e
77

2,
91

7
   

   
   

   
   

78
9,

24
4

   
   

   
   

   
16

,3
27

   
   

   
   

   
10

2%
1,

32
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

53
5,

75
6

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  T
ot

al
 re

ve
nu

e 
an

d 
ot

he
r s

ou
rc

es
12

0,
71

7,
88

6
   

   
  

11
7,

44
3,

51
7

   
   

  
(3

,2
74

,3
69

)
   

   
   

97
%

20
3,

27
4,

00
0

   
   

  
85

,8
30

,4
83

   
   

   
   

 

E
X

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

E
S 

A
N

D
 O

T
H

E
R

 U
SE

S:
C

U
R

R
EN

T 
EX

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

ES
   

 C
os

t o
f e

ne
rg

y 
an

d 
sc

he
du

lin
g 

86
,8

51
,8

34
   

   
   

 
86

,9
06

,0
23

   
   

   
 

54
,1

89
   

   
   

   
   

10
0%

15
0,

63
0,

00
0

   
   

  
63

,7
23

,9
77

   
   

   
   

 
   

 D
at

a 
m

an
ag

em
en

t
1,

84
2,

16
7

   
   

   
   

1,
85

5,
42

8
   

   
   

   
13

,2
61

   
   

   
   

   
10

1%
3,

15
8,

00
0

   
   

   
   

1,
30

2,
57

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
 S

er
vi

ce
 fe

es
- P

G
&

E
56

0,
58

3
   

   
   

   
   

56
1,

46
4

   
   

   
   

   
88

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
0%

96
1,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
39

9,
53

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 P
er

so
nn

el
2,

52
5,

83
3

   
   

   
   

2,
33

1,
17

6
   

   
   

   
(1

94
,6

57
)

   
   

   
   

92
%

4,
33

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
1,

99
8,

82
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

 O
ut

re
ac

h 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
56

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

35
2,

65
7

   
   

   
   

   
(2

07
,3

43
)

   
   

   
   

63
%

96
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
60

7,
34

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 C
us

to
m

er
 se

rv
ic

e 
28

5,
51

2
   

   
   

   
   

28
4,

02
7

   
   

   
   

   
(1

,4
85

)
   

   
   

   
   

 
99

%
36

7,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

82
,9

73
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
 G

en
er

al
 a

nd
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n

31
9,

58
3

   
   

   
   

   
40

9,
31

3
   

   
   

   
   

89
,7

30
   

   
   

   
   

12
8%

50
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
95

,6
87

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

 L
eg

al
, r

eg
ul

at
or

y 
an

d 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e
64

2,
83

3
   

   
   

   
   

61
4,

74
4

   
   

   
   

   
(2

8,
08

9)
   

   
   

   
  

96
%

1,
10

2,
00

0
   

   
   

   
48

7,
25

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 A
cc

ou
nt

in
g

12
3,

08
3

   
   

   
   

   
10

9,
97

8
   

   
   

   
   

(1
3,

10
5)

   
   

   
   

  
89

%
21

1,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

10
1,

02
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 L

eg
is

la
tiv

e
45

,5
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

45
,5

00
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

0%
78

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

32
,5

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
 O

th
er

 c
on

su
lta

nt
s

93
,3

33
   

   
   

   
   

  
93

,5
27

   
   

   
   

   
  

19
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

0%
16

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

66
,4

73
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
 C

al
C

C
A

 T
ra

de
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
25

6,
66

7
   

   
   

   
   

19
2,

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
(6

4,
16

7)
   

   
   

   
  

75
%

44
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
24

7,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 P
ro

gr
am

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
1,

57
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

1,
17

2,
14

4
   

   
   

   
(4

02
,8

56
)

   
   

   
   

74
%

2,
70

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
1,

52
7,

85
6

   
   

   
   

   
   

 P
ro

gr
am

 - 
C

EC
 g

ra
n t

4,
90

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
4,

17
8,

38
5

   
   

   
   

(7
21

,6
15

)
   

   
   

   
85

%
8,

40
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

4,
22

1,
61

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
 P

ro
gr

am
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 e

va
lu

at
io

n
29

,1
67

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

(2
9,

16
7)

   
   

   
   

  
0%

50
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

  
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
  T

ot
al

 c
ur

re
nt

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
10

0,
61

1,
09

5
   

   
  

99
,1

06
,8

66
   

   
   

 
(1

,5
04

,2
29

)
   

   
   

99
%

17
4,

05
2,

00
0

   
   

  
74

,9
45

,1
34

   
   

   
   

 

O
TH

ER
 U

SE
S

   
 C

ap
ita

l o
ut

la
y

2,
21

6,
66

7
   

   
   

   
19

0,
33

3
   

   
   

   
   

(2
,0

26
,3

34
)

   
   

   
9%

3,
80

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
3,

60
9,

66
7

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 T

ot
al

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s, 
O

th
er

 U
se

s a
nd

 D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

10
2,

82
7,

76
2

   
   

  
99

,2
97

,1
99

   
   

   
 

(3
,5

30
,5

63
)

   
   

   
97

%
17

7,
85

2,
00

0
   

   
  

78
,5

54
,8

01
   

   
   

   
 

   
 N

et
 in

cr
ea

se
 (d

ec
re

as
e)

 in
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fu
nd

 b
al

an
ce

17
,8

90
,1

24
$ 

   
   

 
18

,1
46

,3
18

$ 
   

   
 

25
6,

19
4

$ 
   

   
   

 
10

1%
25

,4
22

,0
00

$ 
   

   
 

7,
27

5,
68

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

* 
Re

pr
es

en
ts

 sa
le

s o
f a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
1,

37
3,

00
0 

M
W

h 
fo

r 2
01

9/
20

 Y
TD

 a
ct

ua
l.

R
ES

ER
V

ES
 C

ur
re

nt
 B

al
an

ce
 

  %
 o

f F
Y

 T
ar

ge
t 

 F
Y

 T
ar

ge
t 

B
al

an
ce

 
   

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
C

as
h 

R
es

er
ve

 
58

,4
50

,2
27

$ 
   

   
 

66
%

88
,9

26
,0

00
$ 

   
  

   
 P

ro
gr

am
 C

as
h 

R
es

er
ve

 
10

,6
89

,3
10

   
   

   
 

60
%

17
,7

85
,2

00
   

   
  

   
 C

ol
la

te
ra

l C
as

h 
R

es
er

ve
 

2,
12

0,
29

6
   

   
   

   
14

%
15

,0
63

,0
00

   
   

  
71

,2
59

,8
33

$ 
   

   
 

59
%

12
1,

77
4,

20
0

$ 
   

SO
N

O
M

A
 C

L
E

A
N

 P
O

W
E

R
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
9 

th
ro

ug
h 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

31
, 2

02
0

B
U

D
G

E
T

A
R

Y
 C

O
M

PA
R

IS
O

N
 S

C
H

E
D

U
L

E
O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

Se
e 

ac
co

un
ta

nt
s'

 c
om

pi
la

tio
n 

re
po

rt.
2

36 of 154



Net increase (decrease) in available fund balance
   per budgetary comparison schedule: 18,146,318$        

Adjustments needed to reconcile to the
   changes in net position in the
   Statement of Revenues, Expenses
   and Changes in Net Position:

      Subtract depreciation expense (37,096)                
      Add back capital asset acquisitions 799,365               
    Change in net position 18,908,587$        

REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
July 1, 2019 through January 31, 2020

SONOMA CLEAN POWER AUTHORITY

OPERATING FUND
BUDGET RECONCILIATION TO STATEMENT OF

See accountants' compilation report. 3

37 of 154



38 of 154



39 of 154



40 of 154



41 of 154



42 of 154



Lake Feasibility Page 1 
 

SCP Lake County Service Feasibility Study   
February 25, 2020 

1 Recommendation  
Staff recommends against providing service to Lake County at this time due to an inability to provide 
competitive rates. 

The addition of Lake County to SCP’s service territory has a relatively minor impact on SCP’s direct costs 
on a unit basis. In fact, that impact is slightly favorable due to spreading out SCP’s existing higher-priced 
renewable contract costs from 2014 over a larger volume of sales. However, because Lake County would 
be launched with a PCIA vintage rate that is far higher than SCP’s existing customer base, there is a large 
effective cost to SCP customers to maintain competitive rates for Lake County. In order to provide the 
same generation rates across SCP territory and Lake County while maintaining competitive rates for 
Lake County, SCP would take a financial hit of approximately $33 million per year. This is not feasible 
with SCP’s costs to serve. In order to provide service to Lake County, SCP would either need to 
1) implement differential generation rates to Lake County customers that would be less than SCP’s 
current customer rates resulting in $4 million of annual revenue deficit or 2) serve Lake County residents 
with the same rates as SCP customers, imposing 5-8% higher bills for Lake County than throughout the 
rest of SCP’s territory. These annual figures are expected to remain in that range at least through 2026, 
and then begin to drop. Protecting SCP’s existing customers from this cost with higher total rates in Lake 
County would make SCP uncompetitive there.  

Since SCP clearly wishes to aid a neighboring county, staff propose the following actions in lieu of 
making an offer for service at this time: 

 SCP advocacy at the CPUC and in Sacramento arguing for more equitable treatment of regions 
with limited industrial and commercial customers, and with greater access to CCA service and 
clean power, using Lake County as a prime example; 

 SCP advocacy at the CPUC and in Sacramento arguing for a PCIA buyout or more appropriate 
long-term planning process for PCIA; 

 A re-check and report from staff to the Board of Directors to test whether this situation changes 
with significant new CPUC rulings and market conditions; 

 Continued dialog between SCP staff and Lake County staff about renewable energy 
development opportunities and other areas of potential collaboration, even potentially without 
providing service to the region; 

 SCP advocacy for Lake County to be formally recognized as containing a Disadvantaged 
Community or other status valuable for obtaining state funding. 

Should the Board decide to proceed with service to Lake County anyway, SCP would need to have a final 
vote extending a formal offer of service by July 2020 in order to begin service in June 2022.  

The following table summarizes the analysis of SCP extending service to Lake County against the criteria 
established in the Board Adopted General Policy D.4 New Customer Communities.  

  

43 of 154



Lake Feasibility Page 2 
 

Policy 
Criteria 

Policy Criteria Discussion Pass/ Fail 

1 Proximity to current 
territory 

Lake County is adjacent to both Sonoma & 
Mendocino County, though long, winding roads 
may make it difficult to access during inclement 
weather or night-time hours. 

Pass 

2 Adherence to JPA Pending each Lake County and incorporated 
city jurisdiction vote 

TBD 

3a Decreases GHG emissions SCP has provided 48% GHG savings from PG&E 
since inception. CCA is the most effective way 
of decreasing GHG emissions. The difference in 
power portfolio emissions is narrowing, but SCP 
is leading decarbonization of buildings and 
transportation. 

Pass 

3b Does not impose 
additional costs or 
financial risk 

Increases costs to existing SCP customers by 
approximately $4 million per year by 
implementing preferred lower rates for Lake 
County, or must charge rates that would result 
in 5-8% higher total bills in Lake County than 
the rest of SCP’s territory. 

Fail 

3c Promotes renewable 
energy & energy 
efficiency  

SCP could promote more renewable energy 
procurement and energy efficiency programs 
with the addition of Lake County. 

Pass 

4 Aligns with politics & 
public interest  

SCP Board of Directors to advise on this item. TBD 

5 Increases regulatory/ 
legislative voice 

With more customers and a more economically 
diverse customer base, SCP’s voice is likely to 
be heard more. 

Pass 

6 Maintains autonomy to 
serve community interest 

A larger program generally increases the 
challenge of understanding local needs and 
meeting them. The first indication would 
require each jurisdiction’s vote to be included 
in the program and the final outcome would 
only become evident with their subsequent 
representation on the Board. 

TBD 

7 Does not negatively 
impact quality of service 
or create operational risk 

PCIA impacts mean that Lake County residents 
could be faced with increased total bills, 
increasing the likelihood of opt-outs, 
unsatisfied customers, and potentially risking 
SCP’s mission to cut greenhouse gas emissions 
due to lower participation. 

Fail 

 

44 of 154



Lake Feasibility Page 3 
 

 

1.1 Lake County at a Glance 
 Population 64,382 

 Two incorporated cities: Clearlake and Lakeport. 

 Weather is generally colder in winter and warmer in summer compared with SCP’s existing 
territory. 

 Higher average elevations with peaks up to 7,059 ft. 

 Electric customer load is predominantly residential. 

 Power generation with solar and batteries may be more welcome and cost effective than in 
SCP’s current territory. 

 Includes a majority of the Geysers geothermal complex. 

 Has no designated “Disadvantaged Communities” despite having a Median household income of 
$40,446 and double the households on the low-income CARE rate as compared with SCP. NOTE: 
this may present a further opportunity for political advocacy. 

 

1.2 Concerns with Extending Service at this Time 
 The primary concern is that the high cost of late vintage PCIA fees makes it very likely that total 

rates (generation + PCIA + delivery rates) to Lake County would have to be significantly higher 
than PG&E’s rates for at least five years. Given that SCP’s existing customers are facing increases 
in PCIA that could bring rates to 4-5% over PG&E, it is likely that Lake County’s rates would have 
to be between 8% and 13% higher than PG&E. 

 Lesser concerns include: 

o Serving Lake County could impair SCP’s credit, as Moody’s has identified average 
household income as the primary element in a CCA credit rating. While a consideration, 
this should not be the primary determining factor, since SCP is capable of operating 
without an official credit rating. 

o Uncertainty over the amount and type of generation resources the CPUC will assign to 
SCP from PG&E’s portfolio would be increased. This factor alone is not determining 
either, but introduces some additional risk related to an inability to forecast those 
volumes accurately in advance. 

 

2 Background 
2.1 SCP’s purpose and policy on expansion 
When considering expansion to service a new territory, SCP must keep our guiding documents at the 
forefront of decision-making.  

45 of 154



Lake Feasibility Page 4 
 

SCP is governed by its Third Amended and restated Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) Relating to and 
Creating the Sonoma Clean Power Authority, which lists the purposes of SCP as: 

a. Reducing greenhouse gas emissions in Sonoma County and neighboring regions;  

b. Providing electric power and other forms of energy to customers at a competitive cost;  

c. Carrying out programs to reduce total energy consumption;  

d. Stimulating and sustaining the local economy, including by developing or promoting local 
distributed energy resources; and  

e. Promoting long-term electric rate stability, energy security, reliability, and resilience 

The Board has been providing actions in response to requests for service from Lake County since the 
summer of 2015. Protecting current customers has always been stated as a high priority. At the 
December 3, 2015 Board Meeting Administrative and General Policy D.4 New Customer Communities 
was formally adopted and is provided as Exhibit A. The policy requires the following 7 criteria be met to 
serve a new community:  

1. The community is relatively close to existing SCPA service territory, so that 
regular meeting attendance and community engagement is practical. 

2. The community agrees to abide by the SCPA Joint Powers Agreement, all 
existing SCPA adopted policies, and any conditions of service proscribed by 
SCPA’s Board of Directors, and to take all steps required by the Joint Powers 
Agreement and California law to participate in the SCP program, with 
governance representation determined by the existing SCPA Board of 
Directors. 

3. The SCPA Board of Directors finds that service to the new region: 

a. will decrease greenhouse gas emissions; 

b. will not increase costs or financial risks to existing SCP customers; 

c. will be consistent with SCPA’s purposes of promoting renewable energy, 
energy efficiency and conservation 

4. There should be significant political and public alignment of values between 
existing and proposed participants, so that fundamental conflicts over key 
underlying issues are less likely. This would be important, for example, in 
determining the balance of environmental and economic goals. 

5. The addition of the new community is likely to increase the voice of SCPA in 
legislative and regulatory matters at the California Public Utilities Commission, 
California Energy Commission, California Air Resource Board, the California 
State Legislature and other relevant venues. 

6. The addition of the new community will not harm SCPA’s autonomy over its 
portfolio of power sources, customer programs, and its ability to serve local, 
community interests. 

7. The addition of the new community will not harm the quality of service to 
existing SCPA customers and will not give rise to operational risks that could 
significantly harm SCPA’s existing functions. 

46 of 154



Lake Feasibility Page 5 
 

Most recently, the Board provided action at the June 6, 2019 Board meeting for Staff to pursue the 
feasibility of expansion to Lake County. The Board also adopted new contract goals for CEO Syphers at 
the October 3, 2019 Board meeting that included the completion of a “feasibility analysis of the costs 
and benefits of providing service to Lake County, and provide briefings of the results to both the SCP 
Board and to Lake County’s Board of Supervisors and the incorporated cities of Lakeport and Clearlake.” 

2.2 Lake County Interest  
Lake County adopted an ordinance in 2015 allowing the operation of a community choice program. 
During the formation of SCP and throughout the first year of service, SCP was regularly asked about 
whether the agency would consider expansion to serve other regions. Lake County showed strong 
interest at this time and was weighing the option of engaging with a for-profit CCA provider, California 
Clean Power.    

At the request of Lake County, a feasibility study began in September 2015 and Staff provided a 
preliminary study to the Board in December 2015. 

Lake County then issued an RFO in 2016 for CCA electricity generation services for a five-year agreement 
for a comprehensive service provider to design, initiate and operate a Lake County CCA. SCP formally 
responded on March 1, 2016 that SCP was not prepared to provide those services for Lake County, 
however SCP recommended initiating a dialogue on how Lake County could be aided by SCP or served 
by SCP in the future. Lake County shortly thereafter suspended the exploration of CCA options. 

In May 2019, a request from the County Administrator for Lake County, Carol Huchingson, indicated the 
County’s renewed interest in joining Sonoma Clean Power. Staff began a dialog with Lake County Staff in 
July 2019. Subsequently staff initiated a feasibility study in September 2019 to explore service to Lake 
County by requesting load and demand data from PG&E. This load data forms the basis of SCP’s 
following feasibility study.  

 

2.3 Timeline  
The timeline for launching service to a new geographic territory is now about 15 to 16 months longer 
than it was when Mendocino County joined SCP. CPUC rule E-907 now requires a one-year noticing 
period and a required extended procurement cycle for Resource Adequacy. These factors put the 
earliest start of service at the beginning of the summer rate season in 2022. 

If SCP’s Board chooses to extend service, it is important that an updated Implementation Plan be 
completed and filed with the CPUC before the end of 2020 to begin service in 2022. This timeline also 
depends on the passage of all Lake County ordinances by October 2020.  

3 Discussion 
3.1 Lake County geography and subdivisions 
Lake County is geographically located to the east of Sonoma and Mendocino Counties as shown in red in 
Figure 1 below. Figure 1 also shows the district subdivisions of the county. Lake County has 2 
incorporated cities (Clearlake and Lakeport) and 5 unincorporated districts.  

47 of 154



Lake Feasibility Page 6 
 

Figure 1: Lake County location and county districts 

 
 

3.2 Lake County demographics 
Table 1 shows US census data for Lake County compared to SCP’s existing customer base.  

Table 1: US census data 

 Sonoma  Mendocino  Lake 

Population (ex Healdsburg & Ukiah) 487,838 71,429 64,382 

Housing Units (ex Healdsburg & Ukiah) 205,225 40,926 34,745 

Home Ownership Rate (%) 60.3% 59.2% 65.9% 

Median Household Income ($/yr) $71,769 $46,528 $40,446 

Per Capita Income ($/pers/yr) $37,767 $27,093 $23,345 

Persons below Poverty level (%) 9.3% 16.3% 20.2% 

Land Area (sq mi) 1,571  3,502  1,257 

Persons/sq mi 310.5 20.4 51.5 

Climate zones 1 & 2 1, 2 &16  2 

 

3.2.1 California Alternative Rates for Energy & Family Electric Rate Assistance (CARE/FERA) 

CARE rates provide a 30-35% discount on total electricity charges and FERA rates provide a 12% 
discount. All discounts are applied to the delivery portion of the bill, meaning that all SCP customers 

48 of 154



Lake Feasibility Page 7 
 

receive the same discount and bundled PG&E customers. Customers that are eligible for CARE rates are 
low-income customers that must demonstrate a household income less than California determined 
income limits. They may also be eligible if they demonstrate they are enrolled in public assistance 
programs. Customers that exceed the income limits for CARE rates, may be eligible for FERA rates if they 
demonstrate they are below a determined percentage of Federal Poverty Guidelines.  

Lake County has over twice the rate of CARE customer accounts as SCP (note that FERA data is not 
available for Lake County, but for reference only 0.3% of SCP customer accounts are FERA).  Figure 2 
shows that over 30% of total Lake County customers are on a CARE rate compare to approximately 15% 
for SCP.  

Figure 2: Percent of CARE meters 

 

3.3 Lake County Electricity Load 
3.3.1 Annual load 

Lake County’s total electricity usage is approximately 17% of SCP’s current load assuming a 100% 
participation rate and excluding customers receiving electricity from 3rd party Electricity Service 
Providers.  

Although the total potential Lake County load could be 17% of SCP current load, SCP’s feasibility analysis 
assumes participation rates on par with the current Mendocino County rates to establish a reasonable 
anticipated percentage of load. The assumed participation rates for Lake County are shown in Table 2.  

Table 2: Assumed Lake County Participation Rates 

Participation Rates: 
Residential: 79.1% 
Commercial & Industrial: 81.6% 
Agricultural: 71.2% 

 

Figure 3 shows the monthly usage profile of each of the jurisdictions in Lake County compared to SCP’s 
current usage. This figure incorporates the participation rates shown in Table 2. Lake County would add 
an anticipated 14% to SCP’s current electricity usage.   

49 of 154



Lake Feasibility Page 8 
 

Figure 3: Anticipated Lake County Electricity Usage compared to SCP 

 
 

3.3.2 Load per customer type 

Lake County electricity use is significantly weighted towards the residential sector compared to SCP’s 
current customer base.  Figure 4 shows the electricity usage breakdown by customer type for Lake 
County alongside SCP’s current breakdown. This shows that Lake County residential usage makes up 
approximately 65% of the total county usage compared to SCP’s current residential load percentage of 
48%.  

Figure 4: Electricity Usage Breakdown by Customer Type 

  

50 of 154



Lake Feasibility Page 9 
 

 

Lake County’s higher residential usage is due to; 1) a higher percentage of residential customers (87% of 
accounts in Lake County are residential compared to 85% for SCP), 2) a higher residential usage per 
meter, and 3) a lower commercial usage per meter. Table 3 shows the comparison of average monthly 
usage/meter for each customer type.  

Table 3: Average kWh/meter by Customer Type 

Customer Type 
Average Monthly  Usage per Meter 

(kWh/meter) 

Lake County SCP 

Residential 670 502 

Commercial & Industrial 2,806 3,500 

Agricultural 1,381 1,688 

 

Figure 5 shows that the average electricity use per customer account is higher than SCP’s current 
residential customer usage every month of the year.  

Figure 5: Monthly RESIDENTIAL Electricity use per customer (kWh/meter) 

 
Lake County’s higher residential usage per account is likely explained by the more extreme 
temperatures in Lake County, the higher fraction of electric heating, and the lower average level of 
insulation in buildings. Figure 6 shows the average temperature by month in Lake County is hotter in 
summer and colder in winter compared to Sonoma County likely corresponding to more air conditioning 
electricity use in summer and higher heating loads in winter (especially coupled with increased electric 
heating).  Figure 7 shows that 67% of residential accounts in Lake County have electric heating sources 
whereas only 21% of SCP’s current residential accounts have electric heating.  

 

51 of 154



Lake Feasibility Page 10 
 

Figure 6: Average Temperature by Month 

 
 

Figure 7: Residential Heating Source 

 
3.3.3 Average hourly profile 

The Lake County hourly profile is similar to SCP’s hourly profile (however with higher residential usage 
and lower commercial usage). Figure 8 shows the current SCP hourly profile, the Lake County hourly 
profile and the combined hourly profile for residential and commercial customers separately. Figure 9 
shows the combined total customer electricity usage profiles. The result of the increased residential 
electricity use and decreased commercial electricity use results in essentially the same overall hourly 
electricity usage profile on a per customer basis.  

52 of 154



Lake Feasibility Page 11 
 

Figure 8: Average weekday hourly electricity usage per customer- RESIDENTIAL & COMMERCIAL 

 
 

Figure 9: Average weekday hourly electricity usage per customer- ALL CUSTOMERS 

 
Figure 10 shows the seasonal hourly electricity use profile for all SCP customers and the profile result of 
adding Lake County. This figure shows the aggregate electricity use while the previous figures showed 
electricity use per customer. The addition of Lake County increases electricity use, however the overall 
profile shape for each season remains relatively the same.  

 

53 of 154



Lake Feasibility Page 12 
 

Figure 10: Season average weekday hourly electricity use profiles 

 
 

 Peak demand is a measure of the highest coincident electricity demand over a period of time. Figure 11 shows 
the current daily peak demand (including losses) of SCP’s current customer base and what would result with the 
addition of Lake County.  

Figure 11: Daily Peak Demand 

 
 

54 of 154



Lake Feasibility Page 13 
 

3.3.4 Behind the Meter Solar 

Lake County has a similar percentage of meters participating in solar net energy metering (NEM) as SCP. 
Figure 12 shows that approximately 5.8% of Lake County meters are NEM meters compared to SCP’s 
6.7%   

Figure 12: Percentage of Meters that are solar NEM 

 
 

The total installed solar NEM capacity by year is shown in Figure 13 and the year on year growth trends 
is shown is Figure 14.  

55 of 154



Lake Feasibility Page 14 
 

Figure 13: Installed Solar NEM Capacity by Territory 

 
Figure 14: Installed Solar NEM Growth by Territory 

 
 

3.3.5 EV 

Lake County’s share of registered electric vehicles (EVs) is approximately a quarter of the share of that 
seen in Sonoma and Mendocino counties. This data comes from the California Department of Motor 
Vehicles (DMV) as of October 2018. Figure 15 shows the percentage breakdown of full battery electric 
and plug-in hybrid vehicles registered in Lake County compared to Sonoma/Mendocino County.  

56 of 154



Lake Feasibility Page 15 
 

Figure 15: Percentage of registered vehicles that are EVs 

 
SCP anticipates the growth trends for electric vehicles in Lake County to remain relatively modest until 
there are significantly more charging stations added. The lower percentage of EVs in Lake County is 
likely due in part to the fact that they did not benefit from SCP’s previous EV and charger incentive 
programs and due to the lack of infrastructure in Lake County. Figure 16 below shows the sparse 
location of public charging stations and no DC fast chargers or Superchargers in Lake County. 

Figure 16: PluginAmerica.org Map of EV Charging Stations 

 
SCP forecasts load growth from EVs utilizing the historical trends of EV growth. The average electric 
usage per EV account is shown in Table 4. Lake County has significantly higher monthly usage per 
customer. This is likely due to Lake County overall residential use being higher than SCP and more 
charging at home due to lack of public infrastructure, however there are very few accounts on the EV 
rate in Lake County, so a few large users will skew the overall average.   

Table 4: Average monthly usage per customer on EV rate 

 Lake County SCP 

57 of 154



Lake Feasibility Page 16 
 

Average EV Rate Usage (kWh/mo/meter) 3,576 1,996 

 

3.3.6 Direct Access  

Direct Access (DA) is electricity service that is provided from a competitive provider instead of a 
regulated utility like PG&E or CCA. Customers that are participating in DA are generally assumed to 
retain their DA status and not transition to SCP and are therefore not considered part of the potential 
customer base for SCP. Lake County currently has just over 0.10% of customer accounts being serviced 
by DA providers as shown in Figure 17. In comparison, SCP has almost 0.16% of eligible customer 
accounts serviced by DA.  

Figure 17: Direct Access Customer Accounts 

 
DA enrollment was previously closed, with the program being at capacity and no further accounts being 
eligible to partake in the service. Following the passage of SB 237, the number of DA customers is 
expected to increase in 2021 and again in 2022. The number of DA customer accounts is expected to 
remain steady beyond 2022.    

SCP does not have access to potential customers in Lake County that are partaking in the lottery 
enrollment for Direct Access, so cannot adequately forecast the potential loss of eligible customer load 
to Direct Access specifically. SCP does assume the year-on-year overall energy usage trend to mirror 
SCP’s forecasted load.  

3.4 Lake County resource potential 
Potential for local sources of clean energy could possibly be expanded with the addition of Lake County. 
SCP’s current EverGreen product uses 100% local (in-territory) 100% renewable power sources. 
Currently, EverGreen is being served as a 50/50 mix of local geothermal and six 1 MW solar feed-in-tariff 
projects located in Petaluma, Cloverdale, and Willits. Figure 18 shows that Lake County could be a 
further resource for solar, storage and geothermal. The potential for new biomass and wind power in 
Lake County is less significant.  

58 of 154



Lake Feasibility Page 17 
 

Figure 18: Lake County Renewable Resource Potential 

 

4 Impact to SCP’s Goals  
4.1 Renewable Portfolio Standard (RPS) 
SCP must meet California’s Renewable Portfolio Standard (RPS) minimum percentage of customer load 
to be served by qualified renewable energy facilities. Currently, SCP is approximately 6 years ahead of 
the 50% RPS requirement, and is committed to meeting the 60% by 2030 requirement. The addition of 
Lake County would require further RPS resources meet the SCP RPS goal percentages. Table 5 details the 
additional RPS SCP would need to add to its portfolio (either by allocation or procurement) with the 
addition of Lake County.  

59 of 154



Lake Feasibility Page 18 
 

Table 5: RPS procurement goals 

Year RPS 
Requirement 
(% of MWh 
sales) 

SCP 
RPS 
goal 
(% of 
MWh 
sales) 

Current/Planned 
Procurement 
(MWh) 

Additional 
needed for 
Lake County 
(MWh) 

2022 38.5 50 1,189,198 94,641 
2023 41.3 50 1,188,960 162,892 
2024 44 50 1,188,454 162,823 
2025 46.7 50 1,187,725 162,723 
2026 49.3 50 1,186,770 162,592 
2027 52 52.2 1,238,499 169,679 
2028 54.7 54.9 1,302,586 178,459 
2029 57.3 57.5 1,364,860 186,991 
2030 60 60.2 1,430,149 195,936 

 

It should also be noted that 65% of the minimum state mandated RPS requirement needs to comprised 
of long-term (>10 year) contracts. The additional RPS needed for Lake County listed above would need 
to be comprised of at least 127,000 MWh/yr of long term contracts. 

4.2 Greenhouse Gases (GHG) 
In its adopted Integrated Resource Plan, SCP has committed to reducing greenhouse gases such that the 
default CleanStart product will produce no more than 75 lbCO2/MWh by 2030. To achieve this goal, SCP 
must add additional carbon-free resources beyond the RPS procurement goals shown in Table 5. The 
additional carbon-free resources needed beyond RPS goals is shown in Table 6. 

Table 6: Carbon free procurement goals in addition to RPS goals 

Year GHG Goal (lb 
CO2/MWh) 

Current/Planned 
Procurement 
(MWh) 

Additional 
needed for Lake 
County (MWh) 

2022 115 925,904 71,582 
2023 110 938,319 124,930 
2024 105 950,593 126,602 
2025 100 962,535 128,248 
2026 95 974,354 129,867 
2027 90 934,350 124,386 
2028 85 882,874 117,334 
2029 80 834,098 110,651 
2030 75 783,289 103,680 

 

 

60 of 154



Lake Feasibility Page 19 
 

4.3 Integrated Resource Plan (IRP) 
In addition to realizing annual targets, the SCP procurement strategy is to work toward aligning the 
hourly resource supply with the hourly customer load demand. First, SCP procures resources to closely 
follow the typical demand profile, next SCP endeavors to adjust the load profile through customer 
programs that will closer align with and react to the real-time profile of the generation sources.  

Integrated Resource Planning (IRP) methodology calculates emissions based on this same premise of 
hourly supply and demand matching. This means that in any hour that SCP’s supply resources exceed 
the actual load, those incremental MWh of generation above SCP’s load are not counted toward the 
overall emissions reduction.  

The current requirement is for SCP to emit no more than 0.445 MMt/yr by 2030. SCP’s current IRP 
shows an achievement of 0.152 MMt/yr. The addition of Lake County should change this benchmark, 
however given SCP’s internal GHG goals, the requirement should be fulfilled. The addition of Lake 
County maintains relatively the same current SCP hourly profile shape such that SCP’s current strategy 
should not be significantly impacted.  

5 Fiscal Impact 
5.1 Rates & PCIA  
CPUC Decision D.18-10-019 issued in Phase 1 of the PCIA OIR set an annual cap of 0.5 cent per kWh 
increase across each PCIA vintage. This cap applies to the system average PCIA rate; the cap does not 
apply to each individual customer class. The net result is that some customer classes may pay an 
increase that is more than 0.5 cent per kWh and some customer classes may pay less than the 0.5 cent 
per kWh increase. However, if the system average PCIA increases more than 0.5 cents per kWh, then all 
PCIA rates for that vintage will be capped. The cap may no longer apply, however, if the total 
uncollected amount reaches 10% of PG&E’s total PCIA revenue requirement, at which time the PCIA 
could be uncapped and dramatically and quickly increase.  

The key problem for any CCA serving new load in Lake County is that the cap does not apply to the first 
year of a vintage because there has been no previous benchmark to apply the cap to. If SCP commits to 
providing service to Lake prior to June 30, 2022, the 2021 vintage will be applied. The 2021 vintage PCIA 
rate is forecast to be initially much higher than our current customer base PCIA rates if the 2020 Energy 
Resource Recovery Account (ERRA) forecasts provide any indication.  

PG&E’s Amended Update to Prepared Testimony submitted on November 8, 2019 proposes a system 
average differential of 1.2 cents between the Proposed 2020 PCIA rates for vintage 2020 and vintage 
2014 (2014 is SCP’s vintage with the most customers and load). This represents a 37.4% increase in PCIA 
from the 2014 vintage to the 2020 vintage. SCP’s current customers are predominantly 2014 vintage. 
Table 7 is an extract of the proposed 2020 PCIA rates by vintage.  

Table 7: PG&E ERRA proposed 2020 PCIA rates 

 

61 of 154



Lake Feasibility Page 20 
 

 

 
If there is significant variance between the future 2021 vintage PCIA rate and SCP’s current customer 
PCIA, SCP needs to consider the following options: 1) Implement differential generation rates to Lake 
County such that Lake County residents are offered a competitive total bill cost to PG&E, or 2) 
Implement the same generation rates to Lake County as SCP’s current customer base such that Lake 
County residents will see higher average bills.  

5.1.1 Differential rates 

SCP uses the 2020 vintage PCIA values listed in Table 7 as a proxy for the potential 2021 vintage PCIA 
rate that would be imposed upon Lake County. Because of the 37.4% increase in 2021 estimated PCIA 
from the 2014 vintage (SCP’s current predominant vintage), differential generation rates would be 
necessary for Lake County total bills to be competitive with PG&E. Lake County generation rates would 
need to be less than SCP current customers’ generation rates to account for the increase in PCIA, 
resulting in approximately $4 million decreased revenue for SCP than if the generation rates were the 
same. Staff highlights below the positive and negative impacts of establishing differential rates for Lake 
County. 

By establishing differential generation rates for Lake County customers, SCP would be able to provide 
Lake County residents with total electric bills that would be competitive with PG&E, or at least with 
SCP’s existing customers in Sonoma and Mendocino Counties. In the ideal case, providing competitive 
rates that are lower than PG&E electricity rates would benefit a more economically disadvantaged set of 
California customers.  

Conversely, establishing differential generation rates for Lake County customers would negatively 
impact SCP’s current customer base by requiring those customers to subsidize the loss in revenue 
resulting from lower generation rates to Lake County. This would mean that contributions to reserves 
would build slower and budgets for Programs and/or other general and administrative costs would need 
to be decreased per customer. Setting up a completely different schedule of preferred generation rates 
for Lake County customers would create significant complexity in budget setting and cost planning and 
would introduce billing complexities that could increase the risk for billing errors. It could create 
confusion for customer service and any rate analysis or talking points they may need to address for 
customers.  

62 of 154



Lake Feasibility Page 21 
 

Staff believe that the negative impacts of providing special lower rates for a geographic portion of SCP’s 
territory do not meet the criteria of the Board approved policy. Specifically, differential rates do not 
meet criteria 3b) will not increase costs or financial risks to existing SCP customers. Therefore, it is Staff’s 
opinion that the only acceptable option is to offer the same electric generation rates to Lake County 
customers as are offered to all of SCP’s customers.  

5.1.2 Same rates 

Providing the same generation rates to Lake County customers as SCP current customers appears to be 
the only viable option under the Board Policy to not increase costs or financial risks to existing SCP 
customers.  

There are two ways to implement equal generation rates amongst SCP and Lake County. The first would 
be to ensure that all customers would be provided with generation rates that result in bills that are at or 
below PG&E total bills. To do this, all rates would need to be set accounting for the increased 2021 
vintage PCIA. Setting rates to account for the increased 2021 vintage PCIA rate instead of the 2014 
vintage PCIA rate would cost SCP $33 million per year for at least the next four years. This is not an 
economically feasible scenario, so this option is not considered further. 

The second way to implement equal generation rates is to set rates accounting for SCP’s predominant 
2014 PCIA vintage class. This option would not impact contribution to reserves or budgets, and would 
maintain the current budget setting, planning and billing process. However, this option also has negative 
impacts that produce inequity amongst customers. Providing these generation rates to Lake County 
customers that will have significantly higher PCIA rates would result in SCP providing a default service 
that would create higher total electricity bills to one of the most economically disadvantaged set of 
California customers. The increase is estimated to be approximately 5-8% above SCP’s rates for Sonoma 
and Mendocino Counties, depending on customer class. When taken together with rising PCIA fees for 
all customers, that could mean that Lake County customers would be paying between 8% and 13% more 
than PG&E’s bundled customers at some point within the next one to two years. Not only would this 
negatively impact Lake County customers, but it would likely increase SCP opt-outs.  

 

5.2 Customer breakdown and cost to serve 
The proportion of customer types has a significant effect on the economics of providing electric service. 
Certain customer types bring in more revenue per unit of energy served than other customer types. The 
revenue received depends on the rate structure of the class of customers. Similarly, the cost to serve 
customers depends on the customer profile and how it aligns with wholesale hourly cost of energy. 
Thus, certain types of customers are more costly to serve based on their typical hourly profile.  

5.2.1 Revenue by Customer Class 

Figure 19 shows the typical revenue per unit of energy for various customer classes. Despite the planned 
transition to time-of-use rates, many residential customers are still on a flat rate that does not change 
with time of use or season of the year. In addition, residential rates do not include peak demand 
charges. Commercial customer rates are based on time of use and season and most have additional 
peak demand charges. Thus commercial customers, and in particular large commercial customers with 
larger peak demand, bring in more revenue per unit of energy than residential customers. Agricultural 
customers are also mostly on time of use rates and seasonal rates with connected load or demand 
charges. Agricultural customers seem to utlize energy during periods where time of use rates are 
significantly lower and limit use during peak periods. As such, SCP agricultural customers bring in the 

63 of 154



Lake Feasibility Page 22 
 

lowest amount of revenue per unit of energy. Street light and Traffic Control (SL & TC) bring in a 
moderate level of revenue.  

Figure 19: Unit Revenue (cents/kWh) of customer class 

 
As detailed previously, the customer load of Lake County consists of significantly more residential (65% 
of Lake versus 48% of SCP), significantly less Commercial & Industrial (32% of Lake versus 49% of SCP) 
and comparable Agricultural and SL & TC. Because of the increase in percentage of residential energy 
use and decrease in C&I use, the overall total Lake County revenue per unit energy is less than SCP. Lake 
County customers would, in aggregate, yield a 2.4% decrease in revenue per customer compared to 
SCP’s current customer base. This reality could potentially be a source of political lobbying to advocate 
for a more fair allocation of system costs between regions on the basis of each region’s customer 
composition. 

5.2.2 Load Cost per Customer Class 

The cost to serve the load of a customer with the California Independent System Operator (CAISO) 
depends on the hourly profile of a customer. Load costs are determined by the Locational Marginal Price 
(LMP) at PG&E’s Default Load Aggregation Point (DLAP) on an hourly basis. The hourly LMP changes 
based on market pricing of supply and demand. LMP prices tend to increase in the evening hours as load 
increases and solar production supply drops off. Therefore, customers that have increased evening load 
tend to have higher costs per unit of energy. Figure 20 below shows that Residential and Street 
Lighting/Traffic Control customers are the most costly customers to serve per unit of energy. Figure 20 
also shows that the Lake County customer profile is more costly to serve than SCP’s current customer 
base. This increased cost results from the lower proportion of energy use in the daytime hours where 
wholesale prices are low and the higher proportion of energy use in the evening hours where wholesale 
prices are high (see Figure 9). Lake County customers in aggregate yield a 2.3% increase in cost per unit 
of energy compared to SCP’s current customer base. These are CAISO load costs only and do not include 
other associated costs to serve these customers (RPS contracts, carbon free contracts, Resource 
Adequacy, financial hedging, data management fees, CAISO non-load charges, etc).  

64 of 154



Lake Feasibility Page 23 
 

Figure 20: CAISO Cost to Serve Load by Customer Class 

 
 

Pairing the average revenue per customer and the average CAISO load cost per unit energy shows the 
average net load cost to serve each customer type. Figure 21 shows that residential customers produce 
the least financial margin. This is purely the load dependent costs based on customer type and does not 
include any other costs such as RPS and RA that are non-customer type dependent. The effect of the 
larger fraction of residential accounts in Lake County is apparent in the “Overall” column, showing the 
Unit Margin to be lower there.  

Figure 21: Unit margin of Revenue vs CAISO load costs 

 

65 of 154



Lake Feasibility Page 24 
 

 

5.3 Incremental procurement costs 
5.3.1 CAISO Load 

As stated previously, given the customer breakdown and profile, Lake County costs more per MWh to 
serve from a CAISO settled DLAP LMP perspective. The overall impact of adding Lake County increases 
total SCP CAISO load costs by $0.14/MWh of customer usage.  

5.3.2 Renewable Portfolio Standard (RPS) 

The addition of Lake County spreads out existing RPS contracts such that the existing RPS Procurement 
costs decrease $1.27/MWh of customer usage.  

With the forecast RPS allocation of the PCIA Working Group 3, SCP is forecast to receive an allocation 
through 2026 that exceeds the RPS goals set by the Integrated Resources Plan.  

5.3.3 Resource Adequacy 

SCP has long term Resource Adequacy contracts for existing RPS resources. These resources were 
procured prior to the recent increases in Resource Adequacy obligations from new resources. Additional 
RA procurement comes at a significantly higher cost. As such, the addition of Lake County would 
increase SCP’s average RA costs by $0.35/MWh of customer usage.  

5.3.4 Carbon Free 

With the forecast carbon free allocation of the PCIA Working Group 3, SCP is forecast to receive an 
allocation through 2024 that exceeds the GHG goals set by the Integrated Resource Plan. For 2025 and 
beyond, SCP does not currently have carbon free resources contracted, therefore there would be no 
incremental $/MWh cost or savings with the addition of Lake County.   

5.3.5 Overall Cost of Energy 

Overall costs of Energy with the addition of Lake County would decrease by $0.77/MWh of customer 
usage as shown in Figure 22.  

Note this is all dependent on SCP receiving forecasted PCIA RPS and carbon free allocations. If those 
allocations do not occur, SCP will need to procure additional RPS and carbon and the overall cost of 
energy decrease would only decrease by $0.24/MWh. 

 

66 of 154



Lake Feasibility Page 25 
 

Figure 22: Overall cost of Energy for SCP current and SCP with Lake 

 
 

5.4 Gross Margin  
The Gross Margin is Revenue minus Cost of Goods and Services (COGS). COGS includes the overall cost 
of energy and the data management and service fees that are required to serve customers. The Gross 
Margin excludes all other costs including contribution to reserves, staff costs, customer programs, legal 
fees, G&A, etc. The Gross Margin informs what can be budgeted beyond the basic fundamental costs to 
serve customers. 

As stated previously, Lake County brings in less revenue per MWh since the county has a high fraction of 
residential customers. This means that in total, the addition of Lake County would decrease revenue by 
$0.29/MWh. This is based on providing the same rates to Lake County customers as the current SCP 
customers.  

Combined with decreased overall cost to serve Lake County, the net margin on a per MWh basis 
increases by $0.49/MWh with the addition of Lake County to SCP’s current customer base as shown in 
Figure 23. Note this is all dependent on SCP receiving forecasted PCIA RPS and carbon free allocations. If 
those allocations do not occur, SCP will need to procure additional RPS and carbon-free resources and 
the overall net margin on a per MWh basis would be approximately equal.  

Figure 23: Gross Margin for SCP current and SCP with Lake 

67 of 154



Lake Feasibility Page 26 
 

 
 

5.5 Implementation costs 
While relatively minor compared with the energy cost impacts, extending service to Lake County would 
involve approximately $450,000 in costs for the first year and approximately $110,000 for each 
subsequent year.  

• Sponsorships, dues, public meetings rentals, lunches, and workshops: $61,000 
• Media (print, digital, radio, streaming, etc) $75,000 
• Enrollment notices $97,000 
• Staff time- 300 hours for events, 750 hours for customer service, 200 hours for procurement, 

200 hours for marketing and branding $109,000 
• One additional full-time staff member $110,000 per year (incl benefits) 

As was contemplated by the SCP Board when extending service to Mendocino County, a deferral of one 
or two years before incentive-based customer programs could help offset these start-up costs. 

6 Attachments: 
BOARD POLICY D4 – New Customer Communities 

  

68 of 154



Lake Feasibility Page 27 
 

Administrative and General Policy D.4 
New Customer Communities   

 

Whereas, the Sonoma Clean Power Authority’s (SCPA) purposes include: 

• Reducing greenhouse gas emissions related to the use of power in Sonoma County 
and neighboring regions;  

• Providing electric power and other forms of energy to customers at a competitive 
cost;  

• Carrying out programs to reduce energy consumption;  

• Stimulating and sustaining the local economy by developing local jobs in renewable 
energy; and  

• Promoting long-term electric rate stability and energy security and reliability for 
residents through local control of electric generation resources; and 

Whereas, creating opportunities for new communities to benefit from community choice 
aggregation programs may allow SCPA to further progress towards these purposes; and  

Whereas, SCPA’s default CleanStart service reduces greenhouse gas emissions when compared 
to the incumbent utility’s default service; and 

Whereas, the addition of new communities to SCPA’s service territory will accelerate progress 
toward SCPA’s and the State of California’s goals on renewable energy and greenhouse gas 
reductions; 

Therefore, in light of these considerations, it is SCPA’s policy to consider providing electric 
service in new communities to further SCPA’s goals, consistent with the criteria set forth below.  

Applications to serve new communities will be considered if all of the following criteria are met: 

1. The community is relatively close to existing SCPA service territory, so that regular 
meeting attendance and community engagement is practical. 

2. The community agrees to abide by the SCPA Joint Powers Agreement, all existing SCPA 
adopted policies, and any conditions of service proscribed by SCPA’s Board of Directors, 
and to take all steps required by the Joint Powers Agreement and California law to 
participate in the SCP program, with governance representation determined by the 
existing SCPA Board of Directors. 

3. The SCPA Board of Directors finds that service to the new region: 

a. will decrease greenhouse gas emissions; 

b. will not increase costs or financial risks to existing SCP customers; 

c. will be consistent with SCPA’s purposes of promoting renewable energy, energy 
efficiency and conservation 

69 of 154



Lake Feasibility Page 28 
 

4. There should be significant political and public alignment of values between existing and 
proposed participants, so that fundamental conflicts over key underlying issues are less 
likely. This would be important, for example, in determining the balance of 
environmental and economic goals. 

5. The addition of the new community is likely to increase the voice of SCPA in legislative 
and regulatory matters at the California Public Utilities Commission, California Energy 
Commission, California Air Resource Board, the California State Legislature and other 
relevant venues. 

6. The addition of the new community will not harm SCPA’s autonomy over its portfolio of 
power sources, customer programs, and its ability to serve local, community interests. 

7. The addition of the new community will not harm the quality of service to existing SCPA 
customers and will not give rise to operational risks that could significantly harm SCPA’s 
existing functions.  

 

An applicant community that initially appears to meet the above criteria may be referred by the 
SCPA Board of Directors to SCPA staff for a more detailed analysis of the applicability of above 
criteria, and any other relevant issues, following the New Customer Community Application 
Procedure set forth below. 

 

Sonoma Clean Power 

New Customer Community Application Procedure 

 

Step 1 Governing body of applicant community submits letter to SCP requesting 
consideration for service.  

Step 2 Staff evaluates timing of request to determine if internal resources are available 
to consider request, and to ensure no impact to core agency functions.  

Step 3 Staff submits request to SCPA Board of Directors along with staff’s initial opinion, 
and the Board determines whether a full analysis is warranted. If so, staff sends a 
letter of acknowledgement to the applicant region. 

Step 4 Staff executes contract with governing body of new community to fund costs of 
membership analysis and other SCPA costs relating to adding community (e.g., 
cost of updating Implementation Plan). These costs would be deducted from 
program funding that normally would flow to the new territory until startup 
costs are reimbursed to SCPA’s operating fund. Staff undertakes and completes a 
full analysis. 

Step 5 Results of membership analysis presented to governing body of new community 
and to SCPA Board of Directors. SCPA Board determines whether providing 
service to new community is consistent with Policy D-4, whether new 

70 of 154



Lake Feasibility Page 29 
 

community will be offered representation on the Board, and what other 
conditions will apply to new service.  

Step 6 A 60-day period will be provided for SCPA Board members to request a 
presentation by SCPA staff before their city or town councils or county board of 
supervisors, and to allow adequate time for city/town and county staff to 
evaluate the proposed extension of service. 

Step 7 SCPA Board of Directors votes on whether to extend a formal offer for service. 

Step 8 Governing body of new community approves resolution requesting membership 
and ordinance authorizing community choice aggregation service through SCPA, 
and takes any other actions required by the SCPA Board of Directors as a 
condition of service.  

Step 9 SCPA Board of Directors adopts resolution authorizing membership of the 
additional community, and staff submits updated Implementation Plan to CPUC. 

Step 10 SCPA Staff develops service plan and schedule, begins buying additional energy, 
and starts community outreach. 

71 of 154



 

 

Page intentionally left blank for double-sided printing 

72 of 154



 

 

 

  

Staff Report – Item 05 

 

To: Sonoma Clean Power Authority Community Advisory Committee   

From: Neal Reardon, Director of Regulatory Affairs 
 
Issue: Receive Regulatory Update and Provide Feedback as Appropriate 

Date: March 23, 2020 
 

Requested Action: 

Receive Regulatory Update and Provide Feedback as Appropriate 

 

Regulatory Update 

PG&E Energy Resource Recovery Account (ERRA) 

On February 27th, the CPUC approved a Decision adopting PG&E’s Application for 
approval of 2020 ERRA revenue requirements.  The adopted version incorporates a 
reduction in the PCIA from what was originally proposed from $3,149 million to 
$3,034 million.  Despite that reduction, SCP staff expect our customers will be held 
liable for over $100M in PCIA fees for the year 2020.  Rates will go into effect May 1st.  
As noted in the last meeting’s packet, under collections as of January 1st, 2020 are 
bring tracked in a balancing account which SCP customers will be held liable for in 
the future.  Once this balancing account reaches a certain size, PG&E will file an 
expedited Advice Letter to increase PCIA to collect the full $100M figure.  This item is 
discussed more in depth in the Budget section of the agenda.  
 
PG&E RFO for Generation at PSPS-impacted-substations 

On December 11, 2019, PG&E issued a Request for Offers (RFO) for generation 
facilities that would power “resiliency microgrids” at 20 PG&E-owned substations in 

73 of 154



 

 

SCP and Marin Clean Energy’s service areas.  The RFO is all-source, and requires 
resources that are dispatchable and can maintain delivery of energy for days at a 
time.  These resources would be owned-and-operated by PG&E and would 
contribute to their rate of return.  During times of PSPS events, PG&E would use these 
resources to provide generation to CCA and PG&E customers – alleviating the impact 
of their PSPS strategy at that substation.  

SCP staff have met with PG&E several times over the course of the past month to 
better understand their intentions.  We have questioned PG&E about many aspects of 
this RFO including whether they first evaluated options to repair the grid, how cost-
allocation would be treated, whether an exemption of California Environmental 
Quality Act  and other local permitting processes is indeed feasible, if they evaluated 
sites not owned by PG&E, and how jurisdiction within CCA territories would be 
addressed. 

On January 15, 2020, SCP issued a letter to PG&E and relevant staff at the CPUC 
outlining our concerns, proposing that PG&E retract the RFO and work 
collaboratively with SCP on solutions best tailored to our community’s needs and 
preferences.  PG&E responded in a public letter to SCP, but failed to address the 
majority of SCP’s concerns.  SCP staff continue to discuss this RFO and alternative 
solutions with PG&E. 

SCP staff recently met with PG&E staff to discuss the results of the RFO under a non-
disclosure agreement, and to identify questions that still require answers before SCP 
can sincerely evaluate this proposal.  SCP staff issued a data request to PG&E to 
better understand where they plan to invest in grid repairs, the timeline and costs of 
those activities, and need for additional generation following appropriate grid repair 
work.   
 
PG&E indicated that they intend the projects developed under this RFO to count 
towards their required procurement in the Integrated Resource Planning (IRP) 
proceeding.  This requirement for a collective 3,300 MW of new resources applies to 
all CPUC-jurisdictional LSEs.  New fossil resources are not allowed to meet that IRP 
target.   
 
However, on February 21st the CPUC issued a Proposed Decision that would allow 
for the type of projects considered under this RFO to count for IRP.  The presiding 
judge reasoned that “resiliency projects at substations utilizing biomethane” and 
“creative projects that may utilize some amount of fossil fuels” be permitted.  This 

74 of 154



 

 

raises a host of complexities as PG&E could potentially be building new fossil 
generation in SCP territory which would serve SCP customers during PSPS events but 
be owned and operated by PG&E.  Additionally, SCP customers are paying for SCP to 
meet the IRP target and be double-paying if they are also held liable for PG&E’s 
portion of the IRP target. 
 
PCIA Working Group #3 Allocation Proposal 
 

On Feb. 21st, CalCCA, Southern California Edison, and Commercial Energy jointly 
submitted their final working group report on recommended changes to the PCIA 
methodology.  The most significant change is that CCAs will now have the option to 
take allocations of resources from the IOU portfolio which CCA customers are already 
paying for.  Today, CCAs only have the option to pay the existing PCIA and then to 
separately procure their own resources.  This allocation will cover a host of products: 
Resource Adequacy (local, flex, and system), RPS energy, and GHG-free energy.   

The option for a GHG-free allocation has received attention, as PG&E’s GHG-free 
portfolio contains hydro resources and a nuclear plant, Diablo Canyon.  The CPUC 
has required CCA customers to pay for PG&E’s expensive nuclear power since 2010, 
even though they were not allowed to use that power or get any benefit from their 
payments.  Today, the CPUC is forcing CCAs to make a choice between continuing to 
pay for their share of PG&E’s nuclear power or paying almost double the GHG-free 
premium for the right to reject it.  In effect, it is not a real choice, and forces CCAs to 
use nuclear power or pay even more to replace it with safer sources.  It is good thing 
that the Diablo Canyon nuclear facility is scheduled to close in 2025 for both 
environmental reasons and to bring rates back down to more affordable levels. 

 

 

75 of 154



 

   

- 1 - 

Staff Report No. 4  

 

 

To:  Board  

From:   Sean MacNeil, Director of Legislative Affairs 

  Beth Vaughan, Executive Director 

Subject: CalCCA Sponsored Bills and Bill Tracking Update 

Date:   March 6, 2020 

 

 

Requested Action: None. 

 

Bill proposals update:  

 

1) AB 3014 (Muratsuchi): CalCCA continues to meet with stakeholders. Recent meetings included 

San Diego Gas & Electric (SDG&E), Independent Energy Producers Association (IEPA), Calpine, 

American Wind Energy Association (AWEA), Solar Energy Industries Association (SEIA), and Large 

Scale Solar Association (LSSA). Aside from SDG&E, none of the organizations have provided 

substantial feedback but wanted more time to review language and in the cases of the trade 

organizations wanted to circle back with their members. SDG&E has provided feedback on some 

minor, technical revisions to the bill draft and has also requested that language be developed to 

address POLR/Basic Generation Service. On the additional language, CalCCA has met with SDGE 

on two occasions and has worked internally on counter suggestions. CalCCA has also had 

communication with the author’s office on the bill language and is coordinating with Legislative 

Counsel on the draft as we have made some modifications since Legislative Counsel originally 

drafted it in August 2019. 

 

2) AB 2689 (Kalra): CalCCA/SJCE have had two meetings with the author’s office to assign tasks to 

all of the staff and lobbyists working on the bill. Immediate tasks include developing bill 

materials (fact sheets and Q&A), identifying stakeholders and developing an outreach plan. 

CalCCA/SJCE also met with AWEA, SEIA, and LSSA and discussed the bill during the same meeting 

that we discussed AB 3014. The only concern initially raised was the need to ensure that contract 

specific information and/or bidding information was not included in the information that would 

be shared. As with AB 3014, the organizations wanted to review the bill language, share with 

their member companies and get back to us.  

 

Bill Tracker: 

 

CalCCA has now officially taken positions on the following bills: 

 

Measure Author Summary Position 

SB 45 Allen $5.5 billion natural resources bond proposal for the Nov 2020 

Statewide Ballot. The proposal contains $570 million in 

resiliency funds that could be tapped by CCAs or member 

agencies for resiliency projects. 

Support 

SB 378  Wiener Proposes various consumer and local government protections 

from PSPS events triggered by IOUs. The bill requires certain 

IOU equipment reporting requirements, procedures for 

consumer and local government reimbursements, improved 

Support 

76 of 154



   
 

- 2 - 

Measure Author Summary Position 

local agency notification requirements, and hefty fines for 

PSPS events that are deemed unreasonable by the PUC. 

SB 1117 Monning Eliminates a statutory conflict that results in residents of 

mobile home parks being charged the electrical corporation 

rate rather than the CCA rate.  

Support 

AB 56 E. Garcia Allows the CPUC to authorize the California Alternative Energy 

and Advanced Transportation Financing Authority (CAEATFA) 

to undertake procurement of electricity to meet the state’s 

climate, clean energy, and reliability goals if the PUC makes 

specified findings. The newly formed authority would be 

permitted to procure electricity for customers of electrical 

corporations, community choice aggregators, and electric 

service providers to attain certain energy, environmental, 

economic, public health and public safety objectives 

Oppose 

AB 3191 Gray Establishes minimum penalties for assault and battery of a 

utility work and also established some enhance traffic safety 

laws to better protect utility workers.  

Support 

 

 

CalCCA is currently analyzing the following bills: 

 

Measure Author Summary 

AB 2313 Eggman SB 772 (Bradford). revisited. Long duration energy storage. Bill is likely to 

begin as technology neutral. 

AB 2547 Gonzalez Eliminates bucket 3 and increase bucket 1 by an equal percentage in RPS 

compliance requirements. 

SB 862 Dodd Clarifies that the provisions of the Emergency Services Act apply to 

deenergization events as defined. The bill would also expand wildfire 

mitigation plan protocols for deenergization to address the needs of Access 

& Functional Needs (AFN) individuals, in addition to utility customers who 

receive a medical baseline allowance. 

SB 947 Dodd Directs the CPUC to study performance based rates for IOUs and report 

back to the Legislature. 

SB 953 Wiener Prevents discriminatory and/or unreasonable fees for customer sited energy 

and storage systems. 

SB 1035 Rubio Establishes the Climate Pollution Reduction in Low-Income Homes Initiative 

to provide financial assistance for low carbon emitting appliances. 

SB 1215 Stern Creates the Local Government Deenergization Resiliency Grant Program. 

Grants are for planning and deployment. 

SB 1240 Skinner Directs the CEC and CAISO to study the feasibility of distribution system 

open access. 

SB 1314 Dodd Creates a community resiliency planning grants program. 

 

77 of 154



   
 

- 3 - 

 

CalCCA is watching the following bills: 

 

 

Measure Author Summary 

AB 235 Mayes Creates the California Wildfire Catastrophe Fund Authority (Authority) as a 

tax-free means for electric utilities to provide coverage for utility liability 

costs from wildfires when those costs exceed available insurance. 

AB 352 Garcia, E Creates the Wildfire Prevention, Safe Drinking Water, Drought Preparation, 

and Flood Protection Bond Act of 2020. 

AB 1839 Bonta Seeks to provide a commitment by the state to establish a policy framework 

of goals and principles to address the negative impacts of climate change 

and social inequality in California.  

AB 1847 Levine Authorizes the CPUC to appoint a public administrator to an electrical 

corporation if the commission finds an electrical corporation is not 

complying with state law or rules, regulations, or other directives from the 

commission. The public administrator would have oversight authority over 

the electrical corporation’s activities that impact public safety.  

AB 2951 Chiu Study to look at off-shore wind development. 

AB 3191 Gray Add increase penalties for assault on a utility worker and also adds 

specified traffic laws to improve utility vehicle safety. 

SB 246 Wieckowski Creates a severance tax or extraction tax on oil companies at the rate of 

10% of the average price per barrel of California oil or 10% of the average 

price per unit of gas. 

SB 524 Stern Requires the CPUC to direct energy efficiency program administrators to 

ensure that work is performed by a skilled and trained workforce for 

projects receiving at least $50,000 in ratepayer-funded initiatives within a 

single facility.  

SB 702 Hill Authorizes a retail seller the option to rely on the contracts or ownership 

agreements entered into prior to January 1, 2019, directly by its nonprofit 

educational institution end-use customer to help satisfy the long-term 

procurement requirement in the state’s renewable portfolio standard.  

SB 766 Stern Expands the list of eligible weatherization measures to include water 

efficiency measures that result in energy savings, and energy management 

technologies for publicly owned utilities (POUs), consistent with the existing 

authorized measures for investor-owned utilities (IOUs).  

SB 774  Stern This bill would state the intent of the Legislature to enact later legislation to 

require the commission to develop and implement a program to deploy 

local clean energy generation and storage systems throughout California. 

SB 801 Glazer Requires an electrical corporation to deploy backup electrical resources or 

provide financial assistance for backup electrical resources to a customer 

receiving a medical baseline allowance if the customer meets those 

conditions. 

78 of 154



   
 

- 4 - 

Measure Author Summary 

SB 802  Glazer Require an air district to adopt a rule or revise its existing rules to allow a 

health facility to construct and operate an emergency backup generator 

during a deenergization event without having that usage count toward any 

time limitation. 

SB 804  Wiener Allows publicly owned electric utilities to issue rate reduction bonds, a type 

of financing mechanism already used by public water and wastewater 

agencies and, in some cases, investor-owned electric utilities.  Rate 

reduction bonds can help utilities invest in projects such as clean energy 

development, equipment upgrades, and more in a cost-effective manner 

that saves ratepayers money.   

SB 917 Wiener Transitions PG&E to a publicly owned utility over a five-year span. 

SB 942 Wilk Codifies an existing regulation that authorizes the CEC to approve 

community solar projects for housing projects to comply with legislation 

that requires new home construction to include solar and storage systems. 

SB 1059 Hill Clarifies that "partnership flips" do not trigger property tax reassessments 

for solar projects. This measure is intended to be a cleanup to AB 15x from 

2011 that is not being interpreted incorrectly by the Board of Equalization. 

SB 1321 Bradford Electric Vehicle Integration spot bill. 

SB 1352 Bates Amends the tax code that could unintentionally impact the ability for solar 

projects to continue to get current property tax exemptions. 

SB 1358 Bradford RPS adjustments for locally owned public utilities. Likely a spot bill. 

SB 1416 Bradford Dissemination of false information by CCA governing board. Likely a spot 

bill. 

SB 1422  Bradford Including microgrids in supplier diversity requirements. Likely a spot bill. 

SB 1451 Bradford Legislative intent to direct procurement of energy resources to address gap 

created by "some LSEs." Likely a spot bill aimed at CCAs to mandate 

procurement.  

 

 

79 of 154



 

 

Page intentionally left blank for double-sided printing 

80 of 154



 

 

 

Staff Report – Item 06 

 

To: Sonoma Clean Power Authority Community Advisory Committee 

From: Cordel Stillman, Director of Programs 

Issue: Recommend that the Board Adopt a Resolution to Award the 
Construction Contract for the Sonoma Clean Power Headquarters 
Project to the Low Bidder, Midstate Construction Corporation, in the 
Amount of $9,405,000; Waive Immaterial Bidding Irregularities; Reject 
Bid Protest from C. Overaa & Co.; Find the Project to be Exempt from 
CEQA; Authorize the CEO to Execute a Construction Contract and 
Change Orders; and Make Certain Findings Relating to these Actions  

Date: March 23, 2020 
 

Recommendation 

Staff requests that the CAC recommend that the Board of Directors adopt a resolution 
to award a construction contract for the Sonoma Clean Power Headquarters Project 
(Project) to the low bidder Midstate Construction Corporation in the amount of 
$9,405,000, and to make findings and take other actions as described below. 

Summary of the Resolution 

If approved by the Board, the attached resolution (Attachment A) would:  

1. Approve the plans and specifications for the Project on file with the SCP Clerk 
of the Board;   

2. Award a Construction Contract for the Project to the low bidder, Midstate 
Construction Corporation in the amount of $9,405,000 and waive certain 
immaterial bidding irregularities; 

3. Reject the bid protest Submitted by C. Overaa & Co., the second-lowest 
bidder; 

4. Authorize the CEO to execute the construction contract as contained in the 
bid documents, and any required future construction change orders up to a 
not-to-exceed amount of $1,410,750, which is equal to 15% of the contract 
amount, and authorize the CEO to pay all proper claims; and   

81 of 154



 

 

5. Find that the Project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 
(“CEQA”) pursuant to sections 15301, 15302, and 15332 of the CEQA 
Guidelines.    

Background 

In June 2017, SCP purchased the building and property at 431 E Street in Santa Rosa.  
Although structurally sound, the building was not configured in a way that was suitable 
for SCP administrative operations and staff.  SCP staff worked with an architect, a 
construction management firm, and other consultants to prepare plans and 
specification for a building remodel that will result in a new configuration that better 
suits SCP’s operational needs. 

The Board of Directors authorized the purchase on April 5, 2018. 

Discussion 

The Project involves the complete remodel of the building at 431 E Street.  The Project 
will include a 240 square foot addition to the footprint of the building.  Work will 
include demolition of the existing interior and construction of approximately 15,000 
SF of interior improvements, including office space, kitchen and dining area, meeting 
facilities, a Board room, and other amenities needed for SCP’s administrative 
operations.  Exterior improvements will include modifications to the existing parking 
area, landscaping, ingress/egress modifications, a solar canopy, car chargers, and a 
battery backup system.  Based on the plans and specifications, staff estimated the cost 
of construction of the Project to be $9.7M – $11.3M. 

On January 30, 2020, staff issued a notice inviting bids for construction of the Project.  
On March 4, 2020, staff received and opened bids from four pre-qualified general 
contractors for construction of the Project.  The bids ranged from $9,405,000 to 
$10,567,000, and Midstate Construction Company was the low bidder. 

On March 6, 2020, staff received a bid protest from C. Overaa & Co., the second-
lowest bidder, alleging that Midstate’s bid was nonresponsive because the bid 
contained incorrect addresses and license numbers for two subcontractors, and 
because a third subcontractor had unpaid wage or penalty assessments outstanding, 
which should preclude it from registering with the Department of Industrial Relations 
(although it is, in fact, registered with the DIR as required).  After consulting with 
outside counsel, staff determined that the bidding irregularities alleged by Overaa in 
its bid protest were immaterial and may be waived since none of these minor 
irregularities affected the amount of Midstate’s bid, or afforded it a competitive 
advantage not available to other bidders, nor would allow Midstate to change 
subcontractors. Copies of Overaa’s bid protests and the responses to the protest are 

82 of 154



 

 

attached. After receiving the response from SCPA’s outside counsel, Overaa has 
indicated that it will no longer pursue the bid protest. 

Staff also received correspondence from Carpenters Local Union 751, dated March 9, 
2020, which requested that SCP conduct an inquiry as to whether Midstate is a 
“responsible” bidder under State law. Staff consulted with outside counsel and 
determined that Carpenters Union Local 751 does not have standing to object to the 
bid award, and that the allegations in the March 9 letter should not preclude SCP from 
awarding the construction contract to Midstate. A copy of the March 9 letter is 
attached. 

Fiscal Impact 

In FY 19/20 SCP budgeted $8.7M for capital expenditures in that year.  As SCP 
establishes a budget for FY 20/21, that amount will be revisited due to the later 
construction start, and the likely need for some budget to be allocated to the FY 21/22 
year.  

CEQA 

The Project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act under Sections 
15301 (Existing Facilities), 15302 (Replacement or Reconstruction of Existing 
Structures), and 15322 (Infill Development) of the CEQA guidelines. The proposed 
resolution makes findings specific to these exemptions. 

Attachments 

 Attachment A – Draft Resolution 

 Attachment B – Summary of Bids 

 Attachment C – Bid Protest and Response 

 Attachment D – Letter from Carpenters Local Union 751 

Related Items “On File” with the Clerk of the Board 

 Sonoma Clean Power Headquarters Project Manual and Bid Set 

 Sonoma Clean Power Headquarters Project Bid Addenda 1 

83 of 154



Attachment A  

[NOT YET ADOPTED] 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020 – XX 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SONOMA CLEAN POWER 
AUTHORITY AWARDING, APPROVING AND DELEGATING AUTHORITY TO THE 

CEO TO EXECUTE A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH MIDSTATE 
CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE SONOMA 

CLEAN POWER HEADQUARTERS PROJECT, MAKING FINDINGS OF CEQA 
EXEMPTIONS AND DIRECTING THE CEO TO FILE A NOTICE OF EXEMPTION, 

REJECTING A BID PROTEST SUBMITTED BY C. OVERAA AND C0., AND 
ASSOCIATED ACTIONS 

 WHEREAS, the current administrative headquarters for the Sonoma Clean 
Power Authority (“SCP”) at 50 Santa Rosa Avenue in Santa Rosa is too small to 
accommodate existing operations. 

WHEREAS, in July 2017 SCP purchased a building at 431 E Street in Santa 
Rosa as a site for a new administrative headquarters. 

WHEREAS, SCP engaged the services of an architect, a construction 
management firm, and other professional consultants to develop plans and 
specifications for remodeling and renovating 431 E Street into a new configuration 
that better suits the needs of SCP’s administrative operations (the Headquarters 
Project). 

WHEREAS, as detailed in the plans and specifications on file with the Clerk of 
the Board, the construction work for the Headquarters Project involves renovation of 
a currently vacant space, including: (1) demolition work on the first and second 
floors, (2) construction of new interior tenant improvements, upgraded HVAC 
systems, and associated mechanical, electrical and fire sprinkler work;  (3)  exterior 
improvements required in connection with interior renovation, including connections 
for mechanical, electrical and fire sprinkler work; and (4) minor grading to improve 
drainage, replacement of sidewalk, removal of asphalt and reconfiguration of a 
parking lot, installation of solar power canopy and battery, landscaping and 
irrigation, and installation of artwork and signage. 

WHEREAS, the Headquarters Project was bid on January 30, 2020, and 4 bids 
were received and opened on March 4, 2020;  

WHEREAS, Midstate Construction Corporation was determined to be the 
lowest responsible bidder based on its bid for $9,405,000; and  

WHEREAS, staff determined that Midstate Construction Corporation satisfies 
the bidding requirements for the Headquarters Project; 

WHEREAS, on March 6, 2020, SCP staff received a bid protest from C. Overaa 
& Co., the second-lowest bidder, alleging that Midstate’s bid was nonresponsive 

84 of 154



because the bid contained incorrect addresses and license numbers for two 
subcontractors, and because a third subcontractor had unpaid wage or penalty 
assessments outstating, which should preclude it from registering with the 
Department of Industrial Relations (although it is, in fact, registered with the DIR as 
required).  

WHEREAS, Midstate provided satisfactory responses to staff regarding these 
minor bidding irregularities. 

WHEREAS, SCP staff have consulted with outside counsel and have concluded 
that: (1) the Overaa bid protest lacks merit; (2) the minor bidding irregularities 
identified by staff may be waived as a matter of law as immaterial, since none of 
these minor irregularities affected the amount of Midstate’s bid, nor afforded it a 
competitive advantage not available to other bidders: and (3) the bid may be 
awarded to Midstate Construction Company as the lowest responsible bidder. 

WHEREAS, after receiving responses to its protest, Overaa has informed staff 
that they are no longer pursuing the bid protest. 

 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Directors of the Sonoma 
Clean Power Authority hereby: 

Section 1. Finds that the foregoing recitals are true and correct and a 
substantive part of this Resolution. 

 
Section 2. Finds that the Headquarters Project is categorically exempt from 

the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) under Class I (Existing Facilities), 
Class II (Replacement or Reconstruction), and Class XXXII (Infill Development) of the 
CEQA Guidelines (sections 15301, 15302, and 15332), because the Headquarters 
Project is a renovation of the interior space of an existing building in Santa Rosa’s 
downtown, with only minor exterior improvements, and meets the criteria for an infill 
development project. 

 
Section 3. Finds that the Headquarters Project presents no unusual 

circumstances or other exceptions that would preclude applicability of either the 
Class I (Existing Facilities) or Class II (Replacement or Reconstruction) CEQA 
Exemptions, and authorizes the CEO to file a Notice of Exemption with the Sonoma 
County Clerk. 

 
Section 4. Approves the plans and specifications for the Headquarters 

Project on file with the SCP Clerk of the Board. 
 
Section 5. Finds and determines that the allegations regarding the bid of 

Midstate Construction Company for the Headquarters Project according to the bid 
protest submitted by C. Overaa & Co. dated March 6, 2020 are without merit. The 
Board of Directors therefore rejects the bid protest submitted by C. Overaa & Co. 

 

85 of 154



Section 6. Finds and determines that the minor bidding irregularities in 
Midstate’s bid identified by staff may be waived as immaterial since none of these 
minor irregularities affected the amount of Midstate’s bid, nor afforded it a 
competitive advantage not available to other bidders. Based on staff’s 
recommendation, the Board of Directors therefore waives the minor bidding 
irregularities. 

  
Section 7. Awards the Construction Contract for the Headquarters Project’s 

construction to Midstate Construction Corporation in the amount of $9,405,000, 
conditioned on Midstate Construction Corporation’s timely executing the 
construction contract and submitting of all required documents, including, but not 
limited to executed bonds, certificates of insurance and endorsement in accordance 
with project bid and contract documents. 

 
Section 8. Authorizes the CEO to execute the Construction Contract with 

Midstate Construction Corporation for $9,405,000, and authorizes the CEO to 
execute any required construction change orders up to a not-to-exceed amount of 
one million four hundred ten thousand seven hundred fifty dollars ($1,410,750), which 
is fifteen percent (15%) of the Contract Amount, and authorize the CEO to pay all 
proper claims for performance of the Construction Contract. 

 

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

  

86 of 154



 

DULY ADOPTED this         day of          ,2020 

JURISDICTION NAME AYE NO ABSTAIN/ 
ABSENT 

Cloverdale   Director Bagby     
Cotati   Director Landman    
County of Mendocino   Director Gjerde    
County of Sonoma    Director Hopkins     
Petaluma   Director King    
Point Arena   Director Torrez    
Rohnert Park   Director Belforte    
Santa Rosa   Director Tibbetts    
Sebastopol   Director Slayter    
Sonoma   Director Harrington    
Windsor   Director Okrepkie    
  In alphabetical order by jurisdiction  

 

 

 

      Chair, Sonoma Clean Power Authority  

Attest:  

 

 

Clerk of the Board 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:  

 

 

       

Special Counsel,  
Sonoma Clean Power Authority  

87 of 154



S
on

om
a 

C
le

an
 P

ow
er

 H
ea

dq
ua

rt
er

s 
B

id
 O

pe
ni

ng
 R

es
ul

ts

3
P

M
 W

e
d

n
e

sd
ay

 M
ar

ch
 4

, 2
0

2
0

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
in

 is
 a

 r
ec

o
d

 o
f 

b
id

d
er

s 
an

d
 t

h
ei

r 
b

id
 t

o
ta

ls
 a

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 a

t 
th

e 
ti

m
e 

o
f 

th
e 

b
id

 o
p

en
in

g.
 A

ll 
b

id
s 

ar
e 

su
b

je
ct

 t
o

 r
ev

ie
w

 b
y 

th
e 

O
w

n
er

 a
n

d
 O

w
n

er
's

 R
ep

re
se

n
ta

ti
ve

s 
an

d
 a

p
p

ro
va

l b
y 

th
e 

O
w

n
er

, 

So
n

o
m

a 
C

le
an

 P
o

w
er

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

. A
 N

o
ti

ce
 o

f 
In

te
n

t 
to

 A
w

ar
d

 w
ill

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 f

o
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
ap

p
ro

p
ri

at
e 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
al

l B
id

 D
o

cu
m

en
ts

. 

B
id

d
e

r
Bid

 Fo
rm

Su
bco

ntra
ct

ors
 Li

st

Non-C
ollu

sio
n D

ecla
ra

tio
n

Bid
 B

ond

B
as

e
 B

id
A

lt
e

rn
at

e
-1

A
lt

e
rn

at
e

-2
A

lt
e

rn
at

e
-3

A
llo

w
an

ce
To

ta
l B

id

B
id

 S
u

m
m

ar
y

B
id

 D
o

cu
m

en
ts

A
lt

en
 C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
X

X
X

x
9

,7
7

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

  
N

A
N

A
N

A
N

A
9

,7
7

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

  

M
id

st
at

e 
C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
X

X
X

X
9

,4
0

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

  
N

A
N

A
N

A
N

A
9

,4
0

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

  

O
ve

ra
a 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

X
X

X
X

9
,6

4
2

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
  

N
A

N
A

N
A

N
A

9
,6

4
2

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
  

W
ri

gh
t 

C
o

n
tr

ac
ti

n
g

X
X

X
X

1
0

,5
6

7
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

N
A

N
A

N
A

N
A

1
0

,5
6

7
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

A
P

P
A

R
EN

T 
LO

W
 B

ID
D

ER
:

M
ID

ST
A

TE
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N

88 of 154



89 of 154



90 of 154



91 of 154



92 of 154



93 of 154



94 of 154



95 of 154



96 of 154



97 of 154



98 of 154



99 of 154



100 of 154



101 of 154



102 of 154



103 of 154



104 of 154



105 of 154



106 of 154



107 of 154



108 of 154



109 of 154



110 of 154



111 of 154



112 of 154



113 of 154



114 of 154



115 of 154



116 of 154



117 of 154



118 of 154



119 of 154



120 of 154



Staff Report – Item 07 

To: Sonoma Clean Power Authority Community Advisory Committee 

From: Geof Syphers, CEO 
Mike Koszalka, COO 
Neal Reardon, Director of Regulatory Affairs 
Erica Torgerson, Director of Customer Service 
Rebecca Simonson, Senior Power Services Manager 

Issue: Review and Provide Input on the Annual Budget, Customer Rate Setting 
Strategy for Fiscal Year 2020-2021, Establishment of Customer 
Bill Stabilization Fund, and Proposed Revision of Financial Policy 
B2 Regarding Contributions to Reserves. 

Date: March 23, 2020 

Requested Action 

Review and provide input on: (1) Annual Budget, (2) Customer rate setting strategy 
for Fiscal Year 2020-2021, (3) Establishment of a Customer Bill Stabilization Fund, and 
(4) Recommend Board approval for a revision to Financial Policy B.2 regarding 
contributions to reserves. 

Background 

From its inception, Sonoma Clean Power has been able to provide customers lower 
overall bills than if they had remained PG&E bundled customers. The only notable 
exception was a two-month period in 2017. This has been achieved by offering 
significantly lower generation rates to all customer classes in order to more than 
offset the Power Charge Indifference Adjustment (PCIA) fee PG&E charges our 
customers. We have also developed a power mix that has a higher percentage of 
renewable power and lower greenhouse gas emissions than that of PG&E. In 
addition, SCP has created and implemented several innovative customer programs, 
many of which have been replicated by other electric providers around California. 

121 of 154



 

 

Our programs have grown to the point that they are the most valued aspect of being 
a customer of Sonoma Clean Power. We expect this value to increase as we open the 
Advanced Energy Center later this year and expand product and information/training 
offerings. We also plan to expand our programs into battery electric storage to 
enhance customer resilience to power disruptions. 
 
Regarding SCP generation rates, we have a solid history of lower power prices than 
PG&E as illustrated in Figures X.1 through X.4. These low generation rates have 
resulted in tens of millions in customer bill savings since SCP began providing service 
in 2014. 
 
Figure 8.1 Residential Customer Generation Rate Comparison, PG&E vs. SCP 

 

SCP residential customers, as illustrated in figure 8.1, have experienced significantly 
lower generation rates since the inception service to customers in 2014. 

0.00000

0.02000

0.04000

0.06000

0.08000

0.10000

0.12000

0.14000

05
/0

1/
14

08
/0

1/
14

11
/0

1/
14

02
/0

1/
15

05
/0

1/
15

08
/0

1/
15

11
/0

1/
15

02
/0

1/
16

05
/0

1/
16

08
/0

1/
16

11
/0

1/
16

02
/0

1/
17

05
/0

1/
17

08
/0

1/
17

11
/0

1/
17

02
/0

1/
18

05
/0

1/
18

08
/0

1/
18

11
/0

1/
18

02
/0

1/
19

05
/0

1/
19

08
/0

1/
19

11
/0

1/
19

02
/0

1/
20

Pr
ic

e 
pe

r k
W

h

E-1 Comparison
PG&E Gen vs SCP Gen

SCP PG&E

PG&E 

SCP 

122 of 154



 

 

0.00000
0.02000
0.04000
0.06000
0.08000
0.10000
0.12000
0.14000
0.16000
0.18000
0.20000

05
/0

1/
14

08
/0

1/
14

11
/0

1/
14

02
/0

1/
15

05
/0

1/
15

08
/0

1/
15

11
/0

1/
15

02
/0

1/
16

05
/0

1/
16

08
/0

1/
16

11
/0

1/
16

02
/0

1/
17

05
/0

1/
17

08
/0

1/
17

11
/0

1/
17

02
/0

1/
18

05
/0

1/
18

08
/0

1/
18

11
/0

1/
18

02
/0

1/
19

05
/0

1/
19

08
/0

1/
19

11
/0

1/
19

02
/0

1/
20

Pr
ic

e 
pe

r k
W

h

A-10 TOU Comparison
PG&E Gen vs SCP Gen

SCP - Summer Peak SCP - Winter Off Peak

PG&E - Summer Peak PG&E - Winter Off Peak

Figure 8.2 Small Commercial Customer Generation Rate Comparison, PG&E vs. SCP 
 

 
Figure 8.3 Medium Commercial Customer Generation Rate Comparison, PG&E vs. 
SCP   

0.00000

0.02000

0.04000

0.06000

0.08000

0.10000

0.12000

0.14000

0.16000
05

/0
1/

14
08

/0
1/

14
11

/0
1/

14
02

/0
1/

15
05

/0
1/

15
08

/0
1/

15
11

/0
1/

15
02

/0
1/

16
05

/0
1/

16
08

/0
1/

16
11

/0
1/

16
02

/0
1/

17
05

/0
1/

17
08

/0
1/

17
11

/0
1/

17
02

/0
1/

18
05

/0
1/

18
08

/0
1/

18
11

/0
1/

18
02

/0
1/

19
05

/0
1/

19
08

/0
1/

19
11

/0
1/

19
02

/0
1/

20

Pr
ic

e 
pe

r k
W

h
A-1 TOU Comparison
PG&E Gen vs SCP Gen

SCP - Summer Peak SCP - Winter Off Peak

PG&E - Summer Peak PG&E - Winter Off Peak

PG&E - Summer Peak 

SCP - Summer Peak 
PG&E - Winter Off Peak 

SCP - Winter Off Peak 

PG&E - Summer Peak 

SCP - Summer Peak 

PG&E - Winter Off Peak 

SCP - Winter Off Peak 

123 of 154



 

 

Figure 8.4 Large Commercial Customer Generation Rate Comparison, PG&E 
vs. SCP 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
As discussed, SCP provides generation rates for every customer class significantly 
below what PG&E charges their bundled customers. Nevertheless we face a near-
term challenge in staying cheaper than PG&E bundled customer bills.  The central 
reason is that SCP only controls the generation portion of customer bills, which often 
only represent 38% of the total electric bill. Big changes by PG&E to delivery costs 
and fees can dwarf the effects of SCP’s discounted generation rates. 
 

The Power Cost Indifference Charge (PCIA) our customers pay is the main driver of 
the challenge. It is the exit fee to cover 100% of PG&E’s stranded costs for resources 
that Sonoma Clean Power and other CCA customers no longer use. This PCIA charge 
makes it a challenge for SCP to provide generation rates that result in customer bills 
below that of PG&E bundled bills because the fee was designed based on an 
assumption that CCAs would not purchase any renewable energy or enter into any 
long-term contracts in their early years – both of which are mandated by law. Despite 
this challenge SCP has historically been able to set rates such that SCP customer bills 
are below that of PG&E bundled customer bills. Due to the very high PCIA, and the 
expectation that it will remain high for the next several years, the ability of SCP to 

0.00000

0.02000

0.04000

0.06000

0.08000

0.10000

0.12000

0.14000

0.16000
05

/0
1/

14
08

/0
1/

14
11

/0
1/

14
02

/0
1/

15
05

/0
1/

15
08

/0
1/

15
11

/0
1/

15
02

/0
1/

16
05

/0
1/

16
08

/0
1/

16
11

/0
1/

16
02

/0
1/

17
05

/0
1/

17
08

/0
1/

17
11

/0
1/

17
02

/0
1/

18
05

/0
1/

18
08

/0
1/

18
11

/0
1/

18
02

/0
1/

19
05

/0
1/

19
08

/0
1/

19
11

/0
1/

19
02

/0
1/

20

Pr
ic

e 
pe

r k
W

h
E-19S

PG&E Gen vs SCP Gen

SCP - Summer Peak SCP - Winter Off Peak

PG&E - Summer Peak PG&E - Winter Off Peak

PG&E - Summer Peak 

SCP - Summer Peak 

PG&E - Winter Off Peak 

SCP - Winter Off Peak 

124 of 154



 

 

maintain rates such that customer bills remain below PG&E’s bundled customer bills 
is changing. We expect this situation to persist for the next several years. 
 
When Diablo Canyon Nuclear Power Plant is retired (one unit 1/1/2025 and the other 
unit on 7/1/2025) PG&E’s total stranded costs will decline by about one third.  This 
will result in a decline in PCIA as well as bundled customer rates.  At that time, we 
expect SCP will once again show monthly bill savings to customers as we will be 
competing with PG&E on a more equal footing. The question then is:  how 
competitive can SCP be with its rates while continuing to fulfill its mission to provide 
an extremely clean power mix and advanced customer programs? 
 
SCP customers' PCIA obligation for calendar 2020 is $102.8 million. This is 
$38 million above their 2019 obligation. However, CPUC rules prevent our customers 
from paying this entire amount in 2020.  Instead, the CPUC has approved an increase 
to customers' PCIA charge of $14.8 million for SCP customers effective May 1, 2020. 
This $14.8 million figure is derived from a “cap” on increases to the PCIA of 0.5 cents 
per kWh per year.  So SCP customers are liable for a $38 million increase for 2020, 
but are only currently being charged $14.8M of that increase.  Based on the currently 
available information, beginning May 1, 2020, SCP’s customers’ bills will be an 
average 4.4% above PG&E bundled customer bills. 
 
In addition to the PCIA cap, there is also a “trigger”. The trigger is related to the 
amount of under-collection of the PCIA by PG&E that occurs because of the cap.  
Once that trigger is hit, PG&E can request expedited collection of the full PCIA owed 
for that year. We expect this trigger will be hit around August 2020 with the resulting 
PCIA increase being effective by September 2020. This would send SCP’s customer 
bills even further above bundled service bills without an additional change to SCP 
rates. Figure 8.5 below shows the history of the residential PCIA charge for SCP 
customers and our best Information regarding the level of the PCIA we expect 
through the closing of both units of Diablo Canyon. 
 
In fiscal 2019-20, SCP is posting strong financial results. Per the SCP Board’s direction 
last year, SCP has worked to accumulated cash in the case it is needed to offset 
extremely high PCIA fees over the coming few years. By June 30, 2020 we expect to 
have an increase in financial position of $25.4 million for the year. Note that this 
forecast has not been adjusted to reflect the effects of the COVID-19 on sales. 

125 of 154



 

 

Normally, substantially all of these funds would be added to our reserves per financial 
policy B.2. Staff is recommending a change to this policy as we do not expect it will 
be in the best interest of the Authority or its customers to make further contributions 
to reserves for the next several years.  Staff’s proposed edits to Financial Policy B2 are 
shown in Appendix A. The volatility created by the PCIA cap and trigger puts our 
customers at risk and we are proactively working to stabilize their bills. 
 
Figure 8.5 PCIA History and Forecast 

 
 
 
Rate setting strategy 
Staff is recommending the following as a strategy for customer rate setting: 

• Strive to keep SCP customer bills competitive as compared to PG&E 
bundled customer bills 

• Keep the need for SCP rate changes to one or two per year (July 1 and 
January 1) if at all possible 

• Do not dedicate any net income to reserves after the end of FY 2019-20 
until certain conditions are met (described in the proposed edits to 
Financial Policy B2) 

6%

106%

159%

194%

138%

278%

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

$30

$35

$40

$45

$50

2011
(MCE)

2012
(MCE)

2013
(MCE)

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
(Est.)

2022
(Est.)

2023
(Est.)

2024
(Est.)

2025
(Est.)

2026
(Est.)

Residential PCIA PG&E Territory 2014 Vintage 
($/MWh)

191%

126 of 154



 

 

• Set aside the increase in cash position at the end of FY 2019-20 as a 
Customer Bill Stabilization Fund to keep customer bills within 5% of 
PG&E bundled customers for all rate classes or better 

• Use the Customer Bill Stabilization fund to offset PCIA increases before 
using reserves 

• Try to avoid using any cash reserves through the next six years, and in 
no case let the reserve balance fall below 120 days of expenses.  
 

With the information that we currently have, and conservative assumptions regarding 
many of the inputs to our analysis, we believe that the strategy above can be 
achieved. 
 
To implement this strategy, the Board would need to make some key decisions. First, 
revising financial policy B2 to allow the option to not contribute to reserves under 
current conditions. Second, use the increase in net position at the end of the current 
fiscal year as a Customer Bill Stabilization Fund in order to keep customer forecasted 
bills within 5% of PG&E bundled customers for every rate class.  
 
Staff has prepared three options below to help the Board decide how they will set 
rates for the next several months. Staff has made the following assumptions common 
to all three options stated below. When the PCIA annual increase cap is lifted in 
September or October 2020, the CPUC will direct the additional funds owed by 
customers to be collected over a 12-month period. The following conditions will then 
exist: 

• The PCIA for 2021 and 2022 will be close to the projection shown in the 
residential example in Figure 8.5, including the red top portion of the fee. 

• PG&E generation rates are expected to remain relatively stable over the next 
year. Their generation rates recently have been stable. 

• Our increase in net position at the end of the current fiscal year will be at least 
$25.4M. 
 

Based on data from other CCAs, staff believe there will be no financially significant 
loss of customers if SCP customer bills exceed 5% of PG&E bundled customer bills. 

 
Staff did not consider an option where SCP keeps customer bills a fixed percentage 
over PG&E bundled customer bills.  That would require frequent Board approval of 

127 of 154



 

 

rates every time PG&E changes their generation rate or there is a change in the PCIA 
rate.  This does not conform with SCP’s stated JPA goal relating to rate stability.  
 
Developing Options 
Staff looked at multiple options regarding setting rates, the timing of rate setting, 
how to best use the Customer Bill Stabilization Fund, and the use of reserves. Our 
objective was to protect customer total bills while maintaining the financial health of 
the agency. There is no option available where SCP customer bills can remain below 
PG&E bundled customer bills through the six-year period until the PCIA drops 
significantly. The following table summarizes the differences between the three 
options staff is bringing forward for consideration. 
 
Table 8.1 Comparison of Rate Setting Options 

Option Rate Changes Customer Bill Stabilization 
Fund 

Reserves 

Option 1 Change rates on 
7/1/2020 with no 
more changes in 
calendar 2020.  

Use the fund to keep 
forecasted SCP customer 
bills no more than 5% 
above PG&E bundled 
customer bills. 

Avoid using reserves 
unless events go against 
our plan. But in no case let 
reserves fall below 120 
days of expenses. 

Option 2 
(staff 
recommendation) 

No rate change on 
7/1/2020 
Make a rate change 
when the PCIA cap Is 
lifted, likely on 
9/1/2020 or soon 
after. 

Use the fund to keep 
forecasted SCP customer 
bills no more than 5% 
above PG&E bundled 
customer bills. Keep some 
funding available should 
events go against our 
plan. 

Avoid using reserves 
unless events go against 
our plan. But in no case let 
reserves fall below 120 
days of expenses. 

Option 3 No rate change on 
7/1/2020.  
Make a rate change 
when the PCIA cap Is 
lifted, likely on 
9/1/2020 or soon 
after. 

Use the fund to keep SCP 
customer bills no more 
than 5% above PG&E 
bundled customer bills. 

Use reserves to drive 
down customer bills as 
close as possible to PG&E 
bundled customer bills 
without going below $50M 
(equal to 104 days of 
operating expenses) 

 
Option Detail and Results 
For easy visual comparison of the charts presented for each option, all of these charts 
presented in this section are reproduced in Appendix B on one page.  
 
Rate Setting Option 1 
Description/Additional Assumptions: 
 

128 of 154



 

 

• Change rates on 7/1/2020 and target customer average bills through the 
remainder of 2020 that are forecast to be no more than 5% over PG&E 
bundled customers. Make no further rate changes in 2020. 

• The PCIA cap is expected to be lifted with additional PCIA charges taking 
effect on 9/1/2020, but the CPUC could move this date earlier or later. This 
scenario was built around assuming the cap is lifted on September 1, 2020. 

• The 2021 PCIA is assumed to go into effect in April 2021, followed by changes 
to SCP’s rates 30-60 days later.  

• We use the Customer Bill Stabilization Fund to keep forecasted bills no more 
than 5% above PG&E bills, and reduce them to 2% above PG&E bundled 
customer bills by 2022. 

• Maintain existing cash reserves at current balance over the next six years. 
 

Results: 
SCP customer bills as compared to PG&E bundled customer bills swing radically from 
4.4% above PG&E as of May 1st, to 6% below PG&E on July 1st then back to 5% above 
once the cap is lifted. By fiscal 2022-23 they are within 2% of PG&E. 
 

 
 

Some level of the Customer Bill Stabilization Fund is left beyond FY20-21 should 
events not go as expected. 

-7%
-6%
-5%
-4%
-3%
-2%
-1%
0%
1%
2%
3%
4%
5%
6%

M
ar

-2
0

Ju
l-2

0
N

ov
-2

0
M

ar
-2

1
Ju

l-2
1

N
ov

-2
1

M
ar

-2
2

Ju
l-2

2
N

ov
-2

2
M

ar
-2

3
Ju

l-2
3

N
ov

-2
3

M
ar

-2
4

Ju
l-2

4
N

ov
-2

4

M
ar

-2
5

E1 Residential
1- Total Bill % above PG&E

129 of 154



 

 

 
 
Reserve levels are maintained at $71M through the closing of Diablo Canyon. 

 
 
Rate Setting Option 2 (this is staff's recommendation) 
Description/Additional Assumptions: 
 

• No change to rates on 7/1/2020. SCP changes rates to ensure no customer 
class pays more than 5% over bundled customers on forecasted total electric 
bills when the next change to the PCIA is made. This is expected to be on 
9/1/2020.  

• The next rate change is made when the spring 2021 changes to the PCIA go 
into effect.  

• Maintain existing cash reserves at current balance over the next six years. 
 
Results: 
Customer bills are forecast to remain within 5% of PG&E bundled customer bills then 
are forecast to remain within 2% beginning in FY2022-23. 

 $-

 $10,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $30,000,000

1- Cash Balance

 $-

 $25,000,000

 $50,000,000

 $75,000,000

1- Reserves

130 of 154



 

 

 
 
Some level of the Customer Bill Stabilization Fund is left beyond FY20-21 should 
events not go as expected. 

 
 

Reserve levels are maintained at $71M until such time as new reserve contributions 
can be made after the closing of Diablo Canyon Nuclear Power Plant. 
 

 
 
 

Rate Setting Option 2B 
Description/Additional Assumptions: 
 

• Drive down customer forecasted bills so that we get to only 1% above PG&E 
bundled customers within 3 years and remain there until Diablo Canyon closes 

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%
M

… A… J… J… N
… A… S… F… J… D… M
… O… M
…

E1 Residential
2- Total Bill % above PG&E

 $-

 $10,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $30,000,000

2- Cash Balance

 $-

 $25,000,000

 $50,000,000

 $75,000,000

2- Reserves

131 of 154



 

 

• Delay using reserves by exhausting the Customer Bill Stabilization Fund first, 
then use up to $21M in reserves, leaving $50 million in cash reserves. 

 
Results: 
Customer bills are forecast to remain within 5% of PG&E bundled customer bills; then 
are forecast to remain within 1% beginning in FY2023-24. 

 
 

SCP Customer Bill Stabilization Fund is depleted during FY2021-22. This option does 
not leave any funds available to keep customer bills down without using reserves 
should events not go as expected. 
 

 
 
Reserves are used beginning in FY2022/23 and a total of $21 million in reserves is 
used by the end of FY2024/25 leaving $50 million in reserves. 
 

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

M
… A… J… J… N
… A… S… F… J… D… M
… O… M
…

E1 Residential
3- Total Bill % above PG&E

 $-

 $10,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $30,000,000

3- Cash Balance

132 of 154



 

 

 
 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends Rate Setting Option 2. Rates are not changed on July 1, 2020. 
Instead, the Board would pre-authorize Staff to set customer rates to protect all 
customers from paying more than 5% in additional total bill costs at the time the PCIA 
cap is lifted (estimated to be September 2020). 
 

Budget Overview 

The Fiscal Year 2019-2020 draft budget and rates presented in this item seek to: 

 Continue to procure a supply portfolio of electricity generation that is at least 
30% lower in greenhouse gas emissions as PG&E’s portfolio, reaches 50% 
qualifying renewable sources by 2020, and 60% by 2030.  

 Focus program activities into improving existing programs, creating the 
Advanced Energy Center, and building SCP’s headquarters as a living example 
of an advanced energy facility.  

 Maintain the current level of customer service support, community outreach 
and marketing. 

 Increase funding and staff support for program and the Advanced Energy 
Center.  

Finally, it is important to note that no substantive changes have been made yet to 
SCP’s forecast load, expenses and revenues due to changes in societal use of 
electricity due to the coronavirus.  Staff will make those adjustments, as best as we 
can between the draft and final proposed budgets as data begin to be available. 

 $-

 $25,000,000

 $50,000,000

 $75,000,000

3- Reserves

133 of 154



 

 

 

DRAFT BUDGET 

The draft budget is presented first in the form that will be used for adoption, and then 
is followed by supplemental information. The budget categories are intentionally 
general enough to allow some measure of staff discretion, without requiring frequent 
budget adjustments. 

  

134 of 154



135 of 154



136 of 154



 

 

INFORMATION ONLY - SUPPLEMENTAL TO THE DRAFT BUDGET 

Details on the draft budget are provided in this section along with projections of the 
next five years. For the purpose of this projection, SCP’s customer rates vary along 
with the assumptions of Rate Scenario 2. While the table shown reflects a reasonable 
estimate of future costs, it is important to stress that actual revenues and expenses 
will vary from this forecast.  

 

 
 

 

Further detail on each of the proposed budget categories follows. 

5 Year Budget Forecast (with Rate Option 2)
Revenue[1] 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25
Electricity (net of allowance) 170,616,000$      164,144,000$     171,200,000$    171,329,000$    171,069,000$   
Evergreen Premium (net of allowance) 582,000$              626,000$             650,000$            661,000$             668,000$            
CEC Grant 3,830,000$          2,549,000$          
BAAQMD Grant 50,000$                50,000$                
Interest Income 1,100,000$          1,000,000$          900,000$            900,000$             900,000$            
TOTAL REVENUE 176,177,000$      168,369,000$     172,750,000$    172,890,000$    172,636,000$   

Expenses
Cost of Energy and Scheduling 152,410,000$      149,276,000$     150,542,000$    151,784,000$    151,039,000$   
Data Management 3,186,000$          3,187,000$          3,187,000$         3,188,000$         3,188,000$        
Service fees - PG&E 970,000$              970,000$             970,000$            970,000$             970,000$            
Personnel 5,829,000$          6,237,000$          6,611,000$         7,040,000$         7,498,000$        
Outreach and Communications 1,130,000$          1,030,000$          1,051,000$         1,072,000$         1,093,000$        
Customer Service 383,000$              410,000$             434,000$            460,000$             488,000$            
General and Administration 525,000$              625,000$             663,000$            702,000$             744,000$            
Legal 373,000$              399,000$             423,000$            448,000$             475,000$            
Regulatory and Compliance 453,000$              467,000$             481,000$            495,000$             510,000$            
Accounting 217,000$              224,000$             230,000$            237,000$             244,000$            
Legislative 78,000$                80,000$                83,000$               85,000$               88,000$              
Other Consultants 160,000$              171,000$             181,000$            192,000$             204,000$            
CalCCA Trade Association 440,000$              453,000$             467,000$            481,000$             495,000$            
Program Development and Implmentation 6,710,000$          7,113,000$          7,540,000$         7,992,000$         8,471,000$        
Program - CEC Grant 5,660,000$          4,101,000$          -$                          
Capital Outlay 10,800,000$        -$                           -$                          -$                          -$                         
TOTAL EXPENSES 189,324,000$      174,742,000$     172,862,000$    175,148,000$    175,508,000$   

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION (13,146,000)$      (6,373,000)$        (113,000)$           (2,257,000)$       (2,872,000)$      

Customer Stability Fund $25,422,000  $      12,276,000  $        5,902,000  $       5,790,000  $       3,532,000  $          660,000 

Cash Reserves  $      71,147,444  $     71,147,444  $    71,147,444  $     71,147,444  $    71,147,444 

[1] This revenue forecast does not inlcude new grant income. SCP staff are working to secure additional grant revenues for customer programs. Therefore this outlook could improve.

137 of 154



 

 

REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES  

The primary source of income is from the retail sale of electricity to CleanStart and 
EverGreen customers. Customers of both of these programs provide all of the 
Electricity Sales income. EverGreen costs 2.5 cents per kWh over the cost of 
CleanStart, and provides 100% renewable energy from sources in Sonoma and 
Mendocino Counties. The EverGreen premium pays for the purchase of local sources 
of renewable geothermal and solar, and is not intended to produce surplus income.  

The total sales are based on the following scenarios:  

• Set new rates on July 1, 2020 to reflect no more than 5% above PG&E total 
bundled rates across all customer rate classes and utilize cash balance accrued 
from FY19-20 to stabilize customer bills. 

• Set new rates only when the 2020 PCIA cap is lifted and utilize cash balance 
accrued from FY19-20 to stabilize customers' bills. 

The PCIA and PG&E rates that will be effective in the FY2020-2021 fiscal year are still 
unknown and staff has made some assumptions regarding these figures. The SCP 
rates which produce equal total bill costs were based on the following PG&E rates and 
fees: 

• PG&E generation, non-generation, and bundled rates provided in the PG&E 
Monthly Rate Outlook published February 2020 for CalCCA 

• March 1, 2020 effective franchise fees 
• PCIA capped and uncapped amounts provided by SCP’s consultant with access 

to PG&E’s confidential contract information 

Given the unknown value of these PG&E rates and fees, staff made the most 
reasonable assumptions available, however as noted previously in this staff report, 
these will change over the next few months once the CPUC passes decisions. The 
updated PG&E rates and fees will change the SCP rates required to achieve the given 
rates scenarios and thus the budgeted revenue. Staff expects to have updated PG&E 
rates and fees during the month of May 2020.  

The total sales estimate is based on 87% of eligible customers (and load) participating 
in SCP. The net financial performance of SCP is not sensitive to small changes in the 

138 of 154



 

 

rate of participation because a majority of expenses are proportional to the load 
served. In other words, income and expenses generally tend to go up and down 
together. 

An estimate of 0.8% is used for the portion of billings that will never be collected. 
Revenues shown in the budget are net of this reduction.  

 
EXPENDITURES 
Product 

Cost of Energy and Scheduling includes all of the various services purchased from 
the power market through our suppliers. This includes 2,540,000 MWh of energy, 
capacity, green attributes, scheduling services, CAISO fees and other miscellaneous 
power market expenses. The volume of purchased energy is approximately 7% 
greater than the volume sold because of normal system losses. The following figure 
shows the breakdown of forecasted energy use for customer class: 

 

SCP has entered into contracts that will meet approximately 90% of its expected 
energy requirements through the full fiscal year, meaning that energy costs are 
reasonably well known, although changes in energy market prices will still have an 
impact on SCP’s costs. 

SCP’s current suppliers for energy and capacity include Constellation, Calpine, RE 
Mustang, RE Mustang 3, Golden Hills North, Sand Hill C Wind, NextEra, Calpeak, 

139 of 154



 

 

Shell, Powerex, 3 Phases, Transalta, PG&E, Tenaska, Elk Hills Power, CleanPowerSF, 
Marin Clean Energy, NRG Power Marketing, City of Palo Alto, Peninsula Clean 
Energy Authority, Pioneer Community Energy, Silicon Valley Clean Energy, SMUD, 
The Energy Authority, San Diego Gas & Electric, and Southern California Edison.  
 
SCP also has suppliers through the ProFIT local feed-in tariff program. SCP’s ProFIT 
feed-in tariff program was authorized by the Board of Directors to contract with local 
renewable energy suppliers up to $600,000 per year in above-CleanStart expenses. 
This was translated into 6 MW of capacity, which formed the basis for contracting. 4 
MW of solar are currently in operation and 2 MW of solar projects are expected to 
come online in FY2020-2021. Because the EverGreen premium pays for the 
purchase of these local sources, the quantity of ProFIT projects could be increased in 
the future if EverGreen participation increases. SCP is actively working with the 
member cities and counties to increase EverGreen participation.  

Major amounts of SCP’s customer load are also served by customer-owned solar 
arrays. Small amounts also reduce the load of other SCP customers through 
NetGreen overproduction. None of this production is reportable on SCP’s Power 
Content Label, however, because it is treated as a load reduction rather than supply 
energy under California regulations.  

Energy is procured for over 90% of the forecast load through December 2024. The 
primary price risks are therefore related to forecast error, changes in rates of 
customer participation, Public Safety Power Shutoffs, variable generation output of 
solar and wind resources, generation curtailment risks, forward pricing peak and off-
peak unhedged energy, and legislative and regulatory risks (e.g., PCIA fees).  

Based on current rates of participation by net-metered customers and payouts in 
2018 and 2019, the total payout amount forecast for SCP’s NetGreen customers is 
estimated to be about $1,100,000 for the fiscal year. This represents the last payout 
under SCP’s original NetGreen program rules. From this point forward that amount 
will decline to about $250,000 per year.  

Scheduling Coordinator services are provided by Shell Energy North America 
through December 2020. Staff are currently considering options for Scheduling 
Coordinator Services from 2021 through 2024. The charges for this service are 
included together with energy and resource adequacy in the budget. After electric 

140 of 154



 

 

power is scheduled for delivery to customers and ultimately consumed by those 
customers, the actual electric consumption must be trued up against the forecasted 
and scheduled energy. This true up occurs through the settlement process, or 
“settlements.” Settlements also entail addressing a number of other market and 
regulatory requirements. The impact on budgeting is that invoices and credits occur 
several months (and sometimes up to two years) following a given month of service. 

Data Management is a broad scope of services provided by contract through 
Calpine Energy Solutions, including billing data validation, bill coordination with 
PG&E, billing management of special programs (e.g., NetGreen and ProFIT), call 
center services and billing technical support, customer enrollment database 
management, move-in/move-out services, CAISO data preparation, WREGIS data 
preparation, and many support functions related to data reporting.  

SCP's Data Management contract with Calpine Energy Solutions was presented, 
reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors November 7, 2013 and continues 
through April 30, 2022.  

Service Fees to PG&E consist of a charge of $0.35 per account per month (including a 
$0.21 per account service fee and a $0.14 per account meter data management fee). 
There are also numerous small fees associated with data requests. The fees cover 
PG&E’s costs associated with additional data processing and bill coordination, and 
are mandatory and regulated by the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC).  
 

Personnel  

Personnel costs include direct salaries, benefits, workers compensation premiums 
and payroll taxes. We have added in direct employee development expenses of 2% 
of direct labor costs in order to improve the skills and abilities of our staff. During 
FY2019-20 SCP added four staff: one in Customer Service, one in Power Services, and 
two in Programs. During FY2020-2021 we expect to add two additional full-time staff 
for the Advanced Energy Center and several part-time interns. SCP also expects to 
add a General Counsel or other senior Legal Director role early in this fiscal year 
budget.  

141 of 154



 

 

Outreach and Communications 

The attached draft budget assumes that nearly all marketing efforts will focus on the 
Advanced Energy Center and Outreach Communications and sponsorships.  Other 
marketing focuses include Advanced Energy Build and other programmatic support.  

SCP will continue to focus on increasing the authority’s reach and relevance to the 
Hispanic community and other key cultural/demographic sectors and also on 
supporting nonprofit events and efforts which provide exposure and visibility for SCP 
as a community partner committed to supporting our diverse communities. 

Similarly, SCP will continue to reinforce brand awareness through our consistent 
marketing, public relations and social media platforms, and will continue to provide 
leadership within the non-profit sector and the community choice industry.  

New focus this fiscal year include:  

• To broaden SCP’s community engagement, education, and outreach efforts to 
better reach all SCP customers and to build affiliations with local groups that 
can help build community trust and increase SCP customer participation. We 
have dedicated one of our staff to this strategy, and re-allocated some funds 
from the Community Outreach budget to support those efforts.  

• Initiating a comprehensive customer satisfaction survey, and 
customer/demographic research (to be repeated annually).  

 
Outreach and Communications       Estimated Budget  
General Advertising, Media (includes production & placement), $692,700  
     Advertising Support and Market Research   
Campaigns & Program Support  175,000 
Consultants (includes cultural marketing efforts)  133,300 
Community Sponsorships & Outreach 100,000 
Collateral & Miscellaneous  29,000 
 
Outreach and Communications Total  $1,130,000 
 
Exposure through Community Outreach/Events 

142 of 154



 

 

Using historical data for events SCP has sponsored/attended in the past, we 
anticipate that our Community Outreach program will continue to provide exposure 
for SCP in terms of branding, general awareness and personal connections (through 
efforts such as tabling, plated dinners, networking events, etc.)  

Each year, SCP participates in a variety of efforts, including business to business, 
nonprofit, parades, farmers markets, festivals, galas, employee benefit fairs, radio 
appearances, events tailored to the Hispanic community, and more.  

Through the combination of events and efforts listed above, we estimate that we have 
participated in 60 events over the past fiscal year, visually exposing approximately 
50,000 people to our name/brand and/or contact with an SCP representative. We 
expect this level of exposure to customers will increase in FY20-21. 

Customer Service 

This subcategory includes required customer noticing and local business and 
industry development.   

Customer Noticing 

There are several kinds of official mailed notices SCP provides to its customers. 
Outside of enrollment rollouts, the following notices are mailed out to applicable 
customers:  

 Move-in notice postcard (weekly) 
 Move-in notice letter (weekly)  
 EverGreen confirmation notices (weekly) 
 NetGreen welcome (weekly) 
 Opt-out confirmation - immediate notice (weekly) 
 Opt-out confirmation – 6 month notice (weekly) 
 Late payment notice (monthly) 
 Pre-collections notice (monthly) 
 Joint Rate Comparison with SCP and PG&E information (annually) 
 California Energy Commission’s Power Content Label (annually) 
 As needed, special rate notices (e.g. NetGreen 2.0 transition) 

143 of 154



 

 

The budget reflects the approximately 1,250 letters mailed every week plus the 
required annual mailings.   

Business and Industry Development 

The Customer Service team also works with SCP’s local business and industry groups 
through memberships and sponsorships to increase awareness of SCP and improve 
relationships.  SCP participates in many events that raise money and awareness for 
local businesses, such as the food, wine, and agricultural industries. An aspect of SCP 
teams’ key business requires reoccurring meetings with other CCA counterparts, 
stakeholder groups and PG&E to coordinate joint business and facilitate unique client 
needs.  

Community engagement is a high priority and partnering with Santa Rosa Junior 
College to administer the SCP Spirit of Entrepreneurship Grant aims to enhance 
community relations and build stronger ties locally with the College, student 
population, and future work force of our community. This competitive grant is 
facilitated via SCP staff works with various student participants and Business 
department staff to select up to three top performing “pitches” to receive the grants.  

 Customer Noticing Budget Detail 
  Confirmation letters $  80,000 
  Annual Required Notices   105,000 
  Other Noticing      13,000 
  Customer Noticing Subtotal    $198,000 
   
 Business & Industry Development  
  Memberships/sponsorships    $ 40,000 
  Events (Participation)       40,000 
  Customer Appreciation/Development       35,000 
  SCP Grant Fund       60,000 
  Miscellaneous        10,000 
  Business & Industry Development Subtotal  $185,000 
  

Total Customer Service 
 

$343,000 

 

144 of 154



 

 

General and Administration  

General and Administration includes ordinary business expenses such as rent, 
meeting room rentals, parking and transit expenses, liability insurance, basic office 
supplies, office phones, internet service, data service, minor equipment costing less 
than $1,000, leases for printer/copiers, conferences, memberships, dues and 
subscriptions, travel, meals and miscellaneous operational expenses. There has been 
a small increase from the FY 19-20 budget in anticipation of the opening of the 
Advanced Energy Center this spring. 

 

 General and Administration Estimated Detail 
  Office space and meeting/event rentals 194,000 
  Insurance 9,500 
  Misc. expenses and office supplies 63,500 
  Phones, internet, data and minor equipment 52,000 
  Conferences and professional development 20,000 
  Dues and subscriptions 145,000 
  Travel 21,000 
  Meals and entertainment 20,000 
  General and Administration Total 525,000 

 

Other Professional Services 

Legal 

The Legal category is split out from Regulatory and Compliance in this budget to add 
clarity.  Legal expenses will drop in this coming fiscal year due to significantly lower 
expected costs related to PG&E’s bankruptcy.  

Regulatory & Compliance 

This category includes technical research into CPUC rate cases, resource adequacy, 
PCIA and other key issues. It includes technical and legal consultants for compliance 
filing preparation, review and filings.  

Accounting.  Accounting includes services from three different providers. Maher 
Accountancy provides the day-to-day accounting for SCP, including generation of 
financial statements and consolidated reports. Maher’s current fee is $9,672 per 

145 of 154



 

 

month plus a one-time fee of $14,700.  The current contract with Maher will be 
renewed for the next fiscal year and we anticipate an increase, due to an expanded 
scope of work, including accounting services related to the CEC Lead Locally grant 
and NEM cashouts each spring. The County’s Auditor Controller Treasurer Tax 
Collector’s (ACTTC) office provides internal auditing and control for SCP and bills its 
time at cost, estimated to be less than $10,000 for the year. SCP also has an outside 
auditor review our financial statements.  We will be issuing an RFP for outside 
auditing services this year, but estimate the budget to be close to FY 19-20 with an 
increase for inflation.   

Legislative.  Legislative covers SCP’s Sacramento legislative lobbyist, and coverage 
for tracking and advancing bills in the legislative session that affect SCP and the 
energy industry directly. Contributions to the statewide CalCCA trade association 
continue to allow SCP to track and partake in legislative work that affects CCAs across 
the state.     

Other Consultants.  Other Consultants covers costs related to outside services 
needed for basic internal operations, such as: IT services/repairs, nighttime security 
for the building at 431 E Street and 741 4th Street, administration fees for our 
insurance benefits and retirement plans, consultants for mandatory training, and the 
collection agency SCP uses for past-due accounts.  

 

CalCCA 

The CalCCA trade association is an important entity for sharing the costs of legislative 
and regulatory work. The association has been instrumental in improving SCP’s 
effectiveness at the CPUC on matters including the PCIA, resource adequacy, and in 
the legislature on organizing and providing direction to lobbyists and requesting 
action. CalCCA now has seven full time staff, and we expect further improvements in 
the association’s service to SCP and the other public CCA power providers around 
California. 

 

Programs  

The list below indicates the programs we intend to administer in the upcoming fiscal 
year.  Many of these are continuing programs from the current year. 

146 of 154



 

 

 

 Current FY Budget Proposed FY 20-21 Budget 

ELECTRIC VEHICLES   

Charging Infrastructure -
Home charging station 
program. 

$500,000 $350,000. 

CalEVIP - CEC grant program $500,000 (not used) $500,000 

Non-Profit EV Incentive – 
Provide an incentive for non-
profits to purchase EV and 
PHEV vehicles. 

$50,000 $50,000 

School Bus Electrification $0 $150,000 

E-Bike Incentive $0 $200,000 

FUEL SWITCHING   

On-Bill Financing Loans $0 $1,250,000 (revolving loan) 

Induction Cooktop Lending 
Program 

$10,000 $10,000 

AGGREGATION OF LOADS AND RESOURCES 

Demand Response Program $200,000 $300,000 

Smart Thermostat Incentives $0 $20,000 

DISTRIBUTED ENERGY RESOURCES 

SGIP Assistance Program $0 $750,000 

Municipal Storage Assistance $240,000 $65,000 

Solar/Storage at Schools $0 $500,000 

ENERGY EFFICIENCY IN BUILDINGS 

Advanced Energy Re-Build $2,000,000 $500,000 

Advanced Energy Build $0 $1,000,000 

Assistance to Commercial 
Customers 

$60,000 $60,000 

DIY Toolkits $30,000 $30,000 

147 of 154



 

 

 Current FY Budget Proposed FY 20-21 Budget 

EDUCATION 

Education in Schools (Sonoma 
Water) 

$275,000 $275,000 

SWITCH Program $75,000 $75,000 

Fuel Switching Education 
Website (Yellow Tin) 

$0 $100,000 

Misc Education/Tools $10,000 $10,000 

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT 

Consultants $60,000 $60,000 

Contingency $0 $500,000 

CEC GRANT "LEAD LOCALLY" 

All grant expenses $8,960,000 $5,659,761 

PROGRAMS TOTAL  $12,469,761 

Note:  $3,829,861 of FY 20-21 budget expenses above are reimbursable from the CEC. 

 

Advanced Energy Center Leasehold Improvements 

A significant portion of the California Energy Commission grant that SCP received is 
targeted toward the creation of the Advanced Energy Center in downtown Santa 
Rosa.  Included in these costs are $964,000 in incentives for heat pump water heaters 
and residential battery storage that are part of SCP’s match dollars for the grant. 

SCP Headquarters Building – 741 E Street 

SCP intends to award a construction cost to rehabilitate the building it purchased in 
2017.  Current construction costs are estimated to range from $9.5M to $11.0M.  
Most of these costs will be incurred in fiscal year 20-21. 

 

  

148 of 154



 

 

OTHER USES 

Capital Outlay is for equipment costing in excess of $1,000, including 
computers, printers and furniture. However, SCP’s capital investment in its 
owned headquarters building is 98% of this line item for FY2019-20.   

Collateral Deposits used to be included as an “Other Use” but are now 
recorded as coming out of SCP’s Collateral Reserve fund rather than a budget 
line item.  
 

DEBT SERVICE 

SCP currently carries no debt.  

 
 

NET INCREASE/ (DECREASE) IN AVAILABLE FUND BALANCE 

The allocation of surplus funds is governed by the adopted Financial Policy B2. The 
existing policy generally indicates that net surplus funds (if any) are dedicated to 
Operating/Credit Reserves, Program Reserves, and a Collateral Reserve. However, 
changes are proposed to this policy, to stop making new contributions to reserves 
while the PCIA is extremely high. This proposed budget produces an estimated 
reduction in net position through expending SCP’s net income from Fiscal Year 2019-
20. This reduction may only occur if the Board approves staff’s proposed revision to 
Financial Policy B2. 

  

149 of 154



 

 

 

APPENDIX A 
Suggested changes to Financial Policy B.2 

  

  

150 of 154



 

 

Financial Policy B.2   

Available Fund Balance, and Operating, Program and Collateral Reserves  
   
SCP has an Operating Reserve for the purpose of supporting agency credit, a Program Reserve 
that allows multi-year program funding commitments, and a Collateral Reserve to allow the 
posting of collateral for energy and related purchases.  
  
SCP shall maintain a minimum of 120 days of cash reserves at all times.  
  
Target balances are:  
  

Operating Reserve  
  

50% of total annual budgeted expenses  

Program Reserve  
  

10% of total annual budgeted expenses  

Collateral Reserve  10% of annual energy expenditures  
  
Prior to reaching these targets, the following shall apply to Sonoma Clean Power Authority’s 
financial management:   
  
1) Rate Setting and Budgeting:   

A. Definitions  

i. “Rates” shall mean the Average Retail Generation Rate inclusive of All Fees.   

ii. “Average Retail Generation Rate” is the total revenue collected for 
generation divided by the total kilowatt-hours of energy sold.   

iii. “All Fees” is the sum of those fees separately charged to SCP customers as 
determined by the CPUC. Today this includes the Power Charge Indifference 
Adjustment and Franchise Fee.  

A.B.  SCP Rates Less Than 2% Above Bundled Service. When SCP can set its Rates to 
not more than 2% above PG&E’s Rates, then a minimum of 3% of revenues shall be 
recovered through rates to provide for the Operating, Program and Collateral 
Reserves.  

B.C.  SCP Rates Between 2% and 7% Above Bundled Service. When SCP sets its Rates 
between 2% and 7% above PG&E Rates, it shall maintain existing reserves without 
contribution or expenditure.   

151 of 154



 

 

C.D.  SCP Rates More Than 7% Above Bundled Service. When SCP sets its Rates more 
than 7% above PG&E Rates, it may use funds from reserves to offset customer rates 
so long as a minimum of 120 days of cash is maintained in reserves at all times.   

i. If rates can be kept competitive with PG&E, a minimum of 3% of revenues shall 
be recovered through rates to provide for the Operating Reserve,  

Adopted:  June 5, 2014  
 

Amended: January 8, 2015, June 4, 2015 and April 5, 2018  
  

Program Reserve and Collateral Reserve, and reduce financial risk. Rates shall 
be deemed competitive if SCP’s average retail generation rate1, inclusive of all 
fees2, is not more than 2% above PG&E’s average retail generation rate3. ii. If 
rates cannot be kept competitive per the definition in 1.A, then the additional 
amount to be recovered through rates shall be reduced so that SCP’s average 
retail rate is no more than PG&E’s average retail rate. However, the withdrawal 
of cash reserves to reduce rates should only be done in cases where the Board 
makes three findings (1) the use of reserves to reduce rates is likely to be needed 
because of a short-term reason, and unlikely to be needed in subsequent years; 
(2) there is a material likelihood that SCP or its customers would be significantly 
harmed without the use of reserves, and (3) the benefit is greater than the 
potential credit downgrade from use of the reserves.  

2) Allocating the Increase in Available Fund Balance, if any:   

A. 75% to Operating Reserves to support credit and mitigate financial risks.  

B. 15% to Program Reserves to support programs that have financial commitments which 
extend beyond the current fiscal year consistent with SCPA’s mission. Program Reserve 
usage must be authorized by the SCPA Board of Directors with prior review by the 
Community Advisory Committee.  

 
1 The Average Retail Generation Rate is the total revenue collected for generation divided by 

the total kilowatt-hours of energy sold.  
2 All fees separately charged to SCP customers as determined by the CPUC. Today this 

includes the Power Charge Indifference Adjustment and a Franchise Fee.  
3 See footnote #1.  

Adopted:  June 5, 2014  
Amended: January 8, 2015, June 4, 2015 and April 5, 2018  

152 of 154



 

 

C. 10% to the Collateral Reserves to provide a source of collateral for purchasing energy 
and energy-market products.  

Annual Increase in Available Fund Balance shall be determined based on information reported 
in the annual audited financial statements. Available fund balance at the end of a fiscal year is 
equal to assets convertible or expected to be converted into cash within 90 days.  
  
When one or two of the reserve targets are met, greater percentages shall be contributed to 
the unmet target(s) at the Board’s direction.  
  
Upon reaching the target balances, rates and budgets shall be set to maintain the target 
balances.  
  
  

  
  

153 of 154



 

 

A
PP

EN
D

IX
 B

 

 
 

 

 $
-

 $
10

 $
20

 $
30

FY
19

20
FY

20
21

FY
21

22
FY

22
23

FY
23

24
FY

24
25

Millions

O
pt

io
n 

1 
-C

as
h 

Ba
la

nc
e

 $
-

 $
25

 $
50

 $
75

FY
19

20
FY

20
21

FY
21

22
FY

22
23

FY
23

24
FY

24
25

Millions

O
pt

io
n 

1 
-R

es
er

ve
s

-7
%

-6
%

-5
%

-4
%

-3
%

-2
%

-1
%0%1%2%3%4%5%6%

Mar-20

Aug-20

Jan-21

Jun-21

Nov-21

Apr-22

Sep-22

Feb-23

Jul-23

Dec-23

May-24

Oct-24

Mar-25

E1
 R

es
id

en
tia

l
O

pt
io

n 
1-

To
ta

l B
ill

 %
 a

bo
ve

 P
G&

E

 $
-

 $
10

 $
20

 $
30

FY
19

20
FY

20
21

FY
21

22
FY

22
23

FY
23

24
FY

24
25

Millions

O
pt

io
n 

2 
-C

as
h 

Ba
la

nc
e

 $
-

 $
25

 $
50

 $
75

FY
19

20
FY

20
21

FY
21

22
FY

22
23

FY
23

24
FY

24
25

Millions

O
pt

io
n 

2 
-R

es
er

ve
s

0%1%2%3%4%5%

Mar-20

Aug-20

Jan-21

Jun-21

Nov-21

Apr-22

Sep-22

Feb-23

Jul-23

Dec-23

May-24

Oct-24

Mar-25

E1
 R

es
id

en
tia

l
O

pt
io

n 
2 

-T
ot

al
 B

ill
 %

 a
bo

ve
 P

G&
E

 $
-

 $
10

 $
20

 $
30

FY
19

20
FY

20
21

FY
21

22
FY

22
23

FY
23

24
FY

24
25

Millions

O
pt

io
n 

3 
-C

as
h 

Ba
la

nc
e

 $
-

 $
25

 $
50

 $
75

FY
19

20
FY

20
21

FY
21

22
FY

22
23

FY
23

24
FY

24
25

Millions

O
pt

io
n 

3 
-R

es
er

ve
s

0%1%2%3%4%5%

Mar-20

Aug-20

Jan-21

Jun-21

Nov-21

Apr-22

Sep-22

Feb-23

Jul-23

Dec-23

May-24

Oct-24

Mar-25

E1
 R

es
id

en
tia

l
O

pt
io

n 
3 

-T
ot

al
 B

ill
 %

 a
bo

ve
 P

G&
E

154 of 154


	04e Lake County Report (DONE).pdf
	SCP Lake County Service Feasibility Study   February 25, 2020
	1 Recommendation
	1.1 Lake County at a Glance
	1.2 Concerns with Extending Service at this Time

	2 Background
	2.1 SCP’s purpose and policy on expansion
	2.2 Lake County Interest
	2.3 Timeline

	3 Discussion
	3.1 Lake County geography and subdivisions
	3.2 Lake County demographics
	3.2.1 California Alternative Rates for Energy & Family Electric Rate Assistance (CARE/FERA)

	3.3 Lake County Electricity Load
	3.3.1 Annual load
	3.3.2 Load per customer type
	3.3.3 Average hourly profile
	3.3.4 Behind the Meter Solar
	3.3.5 EV
	3.3.6 Direct Access

	3.4 Lake County resource potential

	4 Impact to SCP’s Goals
	4.1 Renewable Portfolio Standard (RPS)
	4.2 Greenhouse Gases (GHG)
	4.3 Integrated Resource Plan (IRP)

	5 Fiscal Impact
	5.1 Rates & PCIA
	5.1.1 Differential rates
	5.1.2 Same rates

	5.2 Customer breakdown and cost to serve
	5.2.1 Revenue by Customer Class
	5.2.2 Load Cost per Customer Class

	5.3 Incremental procurement costs
	5.3.1 CAISO Load
	5.3.2 Renewable Portfolio Standard (RPS)
	5.3.3 Resource Adequacy
	5.3.4 Carbon Free
	5.3.5 Overall Cost of Energy

	5.4 Gross Margin
	5.5 Implementation costs

	6 Attachments:

	03b TLCD Second Amendment (DONE).pdf
	“2. Term of Agreement




